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Who we are
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a leading owner and asset
manager of a very diverse portfolio of European
industrial property, mainly located in Germany, the UK
and the Netherlands.
We look for investments that are priced attractively
and which will create a sustainable and high-yielding
industrial property portfolio.
There are few equivalent platforms to Hansteen’s in the
high-yielding property sector. The combination of a large
high-yielding portfolio with opportunities to add value
and an improving investment market means that the
Group looks forward to the future with confidence.
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Our Milestones
2009

2010

2011

July

March

March

Share issue raises gross
proceeds of £200.8 million in
successful placing and open
offer

Hansteen acquires German
industrial property portfolio for
€330 million

Hansteen becomes a member
of the FTSE 250 and the
EPRA Index

April

May

Hansteen returns to the UK
with acquisition of Kilmartin
portfolio for £80.4 million

Hansteen announces the
successful raising of £146.5
million, net of expenses

October

December

The addition of two NonExecutive Directors and
Fina
nance Director strengthens
the Board

Hansteen acquires the
property assets from the
Spencer Gr
Grou
oup
ou
p of ccom
ompanies
for £150 million
fo

August
Launch of the Hansteen UK
Industrial Property Unit Trust
with five institutional investors

October
Hans
nste
teen
en m
mov
oves
es fro
rom AIM to
the Of
Offi
fici
cial
al L
Lis
istt and be
beco
comes
a REIT

December
Hansteen acquires Saltley
Business Park and Treforest
Industrial Estate
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2014
2012

2013

February

June

May

Hansteen acquires £42.3
million portfolio for HPUT II

Full management platform
established in UK, Germany
and Benelux

Launch of Hansteen UK
Industrial Property Unit Trust
II in partnership with Aviva
Investors Real Estate MultiManagers

Hansteen refinances
German portfolio with
new €343 million five-year
facilities

December
Hansteen’s property portfolio
under management exceeds
£1 billion
Hansteen buys £78 million
and sells £5
£51
1 mi
millllio
ion

July
Hansteen issues €100 million
senior,, un
unse
secu
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d Co
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ertible
Bond
Bo
ndss du
nd
due 2018

August
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ress 27.5
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.5%
%
stak
st
ake
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e in £
£46
460
46
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millllllio
ion
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n
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hten
ht
enne
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ndus
nd
ustr
us
tria
iall Fu
ia
Fund
nd and
beco
be
come
mess ne
me
new
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Asse
sett Ma
se
Manager
to tthe
he F
Fun
und
un
d

June
Hansteen acquires
Netherlands portfolio
for €106 million

October
Hansteen sells HPUT for
£146.1 million

December
Hansteen’s p
pro
rope
pert
pe
rtyy po
rt
port
rtfo
rt
folio
unde
un
derr ma
de
mana
nage
na
geme
ge
ment
me
nt e
exc
xcee
xc
eeds
ee
£1.5
£1
.5 b
bilillililion
on

December
Hansteen acquires 9
properties in Germany for
€56.6 million
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financial higlights

Financial
Highlights
+ 100.9%

+ 4.0%

IFRS profit before tax increased
by 100.9% to £131.2 million
(FY 2013: £65.3 million)

Diluted EPRA earnings per share

+ 22.3%

+ 4.2%

Normalised Income Profit increased

Full year dividend increased

by 22.3% to £48.2 million
(FY 2013: £39.4 million)

by 4.2% to 5.0p per share
(2013: 4.8p per share)

+ 41.0%

+ 3p

Normalised Total Profit increased

Special dividend of 3p per share

increased by 4.0% to 5.2p
(FY 2013: 5.0p)

by 41.0% to £65.3 million
(FY 2013: £46.3 million)

+ 14.5%

+ 12.1%

Normalised Income Profit per share,

EPRA NAV per share increased

increased by 14.5% to 7.1p
(FY 2013: 6.2p)

by 12.1% to 102p
(31 December 2013: 91p)

+ 41.1%
Net debt to property value ratio of 41.1% (31 December 2013: 49.3%)

See note 6 of the financial statements for a
reconciliation of Normalised Income Profit and
Normalised Total Profit to the IFRS measure of profit
before tax.
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Operational
Highlights
Sales £315.3 million

Debt refinancing 3.8% pa

£315.3 million of sales with a total

Completion of the German debt
refinancing with banks new to Hansteen

profit of £26.1 million over 31 December
2013 valuation and £47.7 million over gross
acquisition cost

Purchases £267.7 million

at an all-in average cost of 3.8% per annum

Property valuations + 9.2%
Property valuation increase across

£267.7 million of properties acquired

the total portfolio of 9.2% (£135.8 million)

at an average yield of 9.8% and a vacancy
of 16.0%

Occupancy improvement + 29.2%

Increased AIF stake of 9.2%

Like-for-like occupancy
improvement of 195,000 sq m or 29.2%

Acquisition of a further 9.2% stake

of vacancy at the start of the year

in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund (‘AIF’)
for £26 million increasing ownership to
36.7% - increased to 40.8% post year
end with acquisition of additional 4.1%
for £11.0 million

Placing £46.3 million
Placing of 44,834,877 shares
to raise £46.3 million

Operational Highlights relate to property, owned and
managed, of Hansteen and its associated funds.

Rent roll + £1.7 million pa
Like-for-like rent roll improvement
of £1.7 million per annum

Netherlands acquisitions
€106.0 million
41 estates acquired in the Netherlands
for €106.0 million
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Chairman’s Review

I am pleased to present the results for
the year ended 31 December 2014
and the Company’s Strategic Report.
Hansteen’s aim is to provide investors with consistent, high and
realised returns from predominantly industrial property. 2014 has been
a year in which all elements of our business model have excelled and
I am delighted to report record results in terms of profits and value
growth, reflected in an increased interim dividend together with a
special dividend.

£65.3m
Normalised Total
Profit increased by
41.0%

RESULTS

DIVIDEND

Normalised Total Profit for the year to 31
December 2014 increased by 41.0% to £65.3
million (2013: £46.3 million). Normalised
Income Profit, which excludes profits or losses
from the sale of properties (essentially the
repeatable earnings of the business), increased
by 22.3% to £48.2 million (2013: £39.4 million).
Normalised Income Profit per share increased
by 14.5% to 7.1p (2012: 6.2p). Had it not been
for the fall in the value of the Euro compared
with 31 December 2013, Normalised Total Profit
for 2014 would have been £1.9 million higher.

Hansteen has paid a covered dividend every
year since the first dividend distribution in
2006 and during that period, it has increased
by 66.7%. Our dividend policy is designed
to reflect the high income generated by the
business and we remain committed to a
prudently progressive dividend policy. The
Board already increased the interim dividend
paid on 20 November 2014 by 5.3% to 2.0p per
share (November 2013: 1.9p per share) and will
pay the second ongoing dividend, increased
by 3.4% to 3.0p per share (May 2013: 2.9p)
bringing the total dividend for the year to 5.0p,
a 4.2% increase on 2013.

Basic earnings per share were 17.6p (2013:
9.1p) and diluted EPRA earnings per share were
5.2p (2013: 5.0p). Profit before tax increased by
100.9% to £131.2 million (2013: £65.3 million).
The Group’s EPRA Net Asset Value was 102p
per share (2013: 91p), an increase of 12.1%
despite the adverse currency movement.

In 2014, Hansteen took advantage of a strong
investment market to sell £315.3 million
of property from the owned or co-owned
portfolio, crystallising profits of £26.1 million
over the 31 December 2013 valuation and £47.7
million over gross acquisition cost. The Board
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proposes to reflect this success in the payment
of a special dividend of 3.0p per share, which
will be paid in addition to the ‘ongoing’ interim
dividend also of 3.0p per share.

5.0p
per share.
Full year dividend
4.2% increase
on 2013

15
offices with
experienced
management
teams

The total dividend of 6.0p will be payable on 21
May 2015 to shareholders on the register at the
close of business on 24 April 2015. A Property
Income Distribution of 1.4p is included in this
second interim dividend payment.

OUR BUSINESS AND STRATEGY
Hansteen is a leading owner and asset
manager of a very diverse portfolio of European
industrial property, mainly located in Germany,
the UK and the Netherlands. We look for
investments that are priced attractively and
which will create a sustainable and high-yielding
industrial property portfolio. We also assess
other more opportunistic and management
intensive acquisitions which, although lower
yielding, will provide greater potential for capital
growth. Our strategy is achieved through a
detailed assessment of opportunities in the
UK and Continental Europe. In many cases
our purchases are ‘off market’ and can involve
patiently assembling or reconciling stakeholder
interests in a deal. Our acquisition of the HBI
portfolio in the Netherlands is a good example
of this.
After purchase, our strategy is to maximise the
rental income and occupancy of our properties
through active asset management initiatives
leading to increased values. We aim to realise
and distribute these profits to our shareholders
over the course of a property cycle either by
sales of individual lots or by larger portfolio
disposals.
Our people are at the centre of our success. We
have 15 offices with experienced management
teams across the UK and our regions in

Continental Europe. We work hard at creating
the right relationships with our stakeholders so
that we are in the prime position to act when
opportunities arise.

BOARD CHANGES
Stephen Gee retired as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting in 2014 and Richard Mully will retire as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting on 8 June 2015.
As part of the process of succession planning
for Non-Executive Directors, Melvyn Egglenton
and Rebecca Worthington were welcomed
to the Board on 10 June 2014. Melvyn and
Rebecca were also appointed as members
of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, effective from the
same date.
Richard Mully will retire from the Board at the
Annual General Meeting in June 2015. I would
like to take this opportunity to thank Richard
Mully for his substantial contribution and
commitment to Hansteen’s growth and success
over the past nine years. His knowledge and
experience of continental property markets has
been exceptionally valuable to the Board.

FOUNDER LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)
The LTIP is based on the growth of EPRA NAV
plus dividends, which was put in place for the
Joint Chief Executives at the time of the initial
floatation in 2005 and which has not paid out
to date. However, if the current performance
continues until the end of 2015, the joint Chief
Executives will receive a significant reward.
Details are set out below in the finance report.
The potential award can only be estimated at
this stage and is dependent on the performance
over this three year period.

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC
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Improvements in both the occupational and investor
markets across all three of our core regions have
enabled the business to produce another year of
record results

OUTLOOK
Further improvements in both the occupational
and investor markets across all three of our
core regions have enabled the business to
produce another year of record results. We
have sold a significant amount of property into
a very buoyant UK investment market releasing
capital and allowing Hansteen to make some
noteworthy acquisitions. These acquisitions,
having a high initial yield and a material vacant
element, fit our business model perfectly.
Hansteen has a very diverse, high yielding
portfolio of light industrial property located
across Germany, the UK and Benelux. The
income from the Group’s portfolio has proved
robust throughout the recession years and
should continue to be so in the future. Our
asset management teams have proved adept at
improving occupancy and the rent roll and also
at realising opportunities. Business confidence
and the underlying economy are improving in
each of our regions providing an improving backdrop to our business. However, these levers
for growth have now been supported and in
some areas outstripped by the extraordinarily
low interest rate environment within which we
are operating and, more recently the weight of
capital buying property for yield.

Our optimism for the future must however be
tempered by the current uncertainties in the
euro zone and the potential for the volatility of
the Euro.
At the time of our last half year results we
highlighted that the then current interest rate
environment was extraordinarily low. Since
then rates have approximately halved and
there is a general acknowledgement that these
rates are likely to stay low for longer than
was hitherto expected. Such a background
to the operation of a high yielding property
business is outside the experience of most
people working today but the likelihood must
be that it will provide scope for continued
yield compression and further liquidity in the
property sector.

James Hambro

Chairman
6 March 2015
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review
and Finance Report
Executive Directors

Ian Watson

Morgan Jones

Richard Lowes

Joint Chief Executive

Joint Chief Executive

Finance Director

2014 was an outstanding year for Hansteen
Normalised Total Profit of £65.3 million and EPRA NAV in excess
of £700 million are at record levels. This was all achieved against
a backdrop of the falling Euro.

The Group has completed £583.0 million of
sales and purchases during 2014. The increase
in investor appetite for multi-let light industrial
property, particularly in the UK, has enabled
us to sell profitably £315.3 million of property.
Despite increased competition, we have still
managed to acquire £267.7 million of property
on terms that we believe offer excellent value
and future growth potential.
At the property level, our portfolio that is
owned or co-owned, comprises 4.2 million

sq m or 45.4 million sq ft at a passing yield of
8.5%, occupancy of 86.0%, and over 6,000
tenants, none of whom account for more than
1.2% of the entire rent roll. All three regions
(UK, Germany and Benelux) made significant
contributions to the financial success in 2014.
Our management platform now comprises
15 offices spread across Europe which is
an enormous asset to the business and an
acknowledged market leader at managing this
type of property. Implementing the strategy

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC
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IMPLEMENTING THE STRATEGY
Hansteen has a buy, work and sell business
model. We endeavour to buy assets when
they are at a relatively low point both in relation
to the property cycle and at the asset level.
In particular, we like to buy properties with a
vacant element. We then apply our particular
brand of intensive management to increase the
occupancy, increase the rent and reduce the
irrecoverable costs. Ideally, we then crystallise
the value added at a relatively strong point in
the cycle.
In the years 2008 to 2013 the markets were
both depressed and distressed. During that
period we acquired £1.6 billion of property
and sold £649.0 million from the owned or
co-owned portfolio. The acquisition prices
paid were low and in virtually all cases the
acquisitions were directly or indirectly from
banks that had taken control following a
borrower defaulting on a loan.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KPI’S”)
FINANCIAL KPI’S
We believe that returns are best measured
by looking at normalised profits and valuation
growth.
Normalised Total Profit for the year to 31
December 2014 increased by 41.0% to £65.3
million (2013: £46.3 million). Normalised Income
Profit, which excludes profits or losses from the
sale of properties (i.e. essentially the repeatable
earnings of the business), increased by 22.3%
to £48.2 million (2013: £39.4 million).
This is the ninth consecutive year in which
Hansteen’s Normalised Income Profit has
increased. Normalised Income Profit per share
increased by 14.5% to 7.1p (2013: 6.2p).
The table below sets out the results for
Normalised Income Profit and Normalised Total
Profit including our share of associates.

In 2014, with the market gathering momentum,
the figures were £315.3 million sold and
£267.7 million purchased. Given a market with
improving liquidity all aspects of our strategy
were positive.

2014
£m

2013
£m

78.8

78.4

(14.3)

(12.4)

Management fees

6.0

3.2

Share of associates

10.8

3.7

Overheads

(20.0)

(16.9)

Net interest payable

(13.1)

(16.6)

48.2

39.4

Profit on sale of investment properties

10.5

6.8

Loss on sale of trading properties

(0.2)

-

10.3

6.8

6.8

0.1

65.3

46.3

Rental income
Cost of sales

Normalised Income Profit

Total profits on sale of investment and trading properties
Other operating income
Normalised Total Profit
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In addition to profits in 2014 all regions produced positive valuation
growth. The total uplift of £135.8 million was the highest in any
year for Hansteen. As a result the Group’s EPRA Net Asset Value
at 31 December 2014 was 102p per share (2013: 91p), an increase
of 12.1%. This combined with dividends paid in the year of 5.4%
equates to a return in excess of 17.0%. Excluding adverse currency
movement and the LTIP provision, the underlying performance
increased by more than 20.0%.
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
In total, the portfolio that is owned or co-owned
by Hansteen is valued at £1.6 billion, has a rent
roll of £137.7 million per annum and 14.0%
vacancy. If the portfolio was fully occupied at
our view of market rents, the rent roll would be
£171.4 million per annum, reflecting a yield of
10.6%.
Hansteen’s attributable property investments,
at 31 December 2014, was valued at £1.2 billion
(2013: £1.1 billion). Had the currency remained

unchanged throughout the year, the portfolio
would have been worth an additional £59.1
million. At 31 December 2014, this attributable
portfolio comprised 3.2 million sq m, an increase
from 2.8 million sq m at the start of the year
mainly due to the acquisitions in Germany and
the Netherlands. The portfolio has a yield of
8.6% (2013: 8.7%). The analysis of the portfolio
at 31 December 2014 is set out in the table
below:

Passing
rent
Euros
Sterling
€m
£m

No.
props

Built
area
sq m

Vacant
area
%

Euros
€m

Value
Sterling
£m

Yield
%

Germany

96

1,607,740

11.5%

67.2

52.4

776.6

604.8

8.7%

UK

75

245,841

18.3%

11.5

8.9

155.6

121.2

7.3%

Netherlands, Belgium and France

83

789,742

18.1%

29.4

22.9

311.0

242.2

9.5%

Total wholly owned

254

2,643,323

14.1%

108.1

84.2

1,243.2

968.2

8.7%

Ashtenne Industrial Fund
(AIF)*

252

1,146,131

14.4%

47.4

36.9

546.4

425.5

8.7%

76

335,564

15.6%

18.0

14.1

234.4

182.5

7.7%

1

94,877

2.0%

3.2

2.5

46.5

36.3

6.9%

Total attributable to Hansteen

372

3,223,246

14.0%

133.1

103.7

1,545.1

1,203.3

8.6%

Total under management

583

4,219,895

14.0%

176.7

137.7

2,070.5

1,612.5

8.5%

Hansteen Property Unit Trust II
(HPUT II)*
Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust
(HSUT)*

* Figures include 100% of the funds’ portfolio. Hansteen has an investment
of 36.7% in AIF, 33.3% in HPUT II and 50% in HSUT
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PROPERTY VALUATION

£135.8m
increase in total
portfolio under
management

The value of the total portfolio under
management has increased by £135.8 million
or 9.2% from December 2013. The wholly
owned portfolio increased by £62.9 million with
the three UK funds increasing by £73.0 million.
Hansteen’s share of these fund increases was
£25.1 million giving an attributable valuation
increase to Hansteen of £88.0 million from
31 December 2013.
The value of the German portfolio increased by
€44.0 million or 6.0%. The UK wholly owned
portfolio increased by £8.6 million or 7.6% and
the Benelux portfolio valuation increased by
€23.7 million or 8.2%. The Netherlands portfolio
purchased in June 2014 accounted for all of the
increase in the Benelux.
HPUT II values have increased by £18.7 million
or 11.4% and AIF values increased by £49.1
million or 13.1%. The value of Saltley Business
Park in Birmingham, which is now owned in a
50/50 joint venture with Brockton Capital LLP,
has also increased by £5.2 million or 16.8%.

ASSET MANAGEMENT PLATFORM

1,776
New leases and
lease renewals

The platform has grown further during 2014,
mostly in the Netherlands following the portfolio
acquisition in June 2014. We opened a new
office in Utrecht bringing the total number
of offices to 15. During 2014, the team have
secured 1,776 new leases and lease renewals
across the total portfolio generating £39.2
million of new or renewed annualised rental
income. This is more than twice the number
handled in 2013 (850 new leases and renewals)
and highlights how well the regional asset
management teams have performed this year.
Our asset managers are focussed primarily on
direct tenant relationships and the marketing
of vacant units either for sale or to rent. They
are also heavily involved in the management
of the properties in their region, although the
day-to-day management of our properties is
undertaken by local property managers who
are contracted on a third-party basis. With a
substantial platform in place across all our
regions, we are ideally positioned to absorb

additional properties without a corresponding
proportionate increase in costs. As we continue
to take the marketing of our properties inhouse, the fees paid to third party marketing
agents relative to rent generated from new
lettings and lease renewals has decreased
further during 2014. Letting fees paid were £0.8
million on new lettings and renewals of £39.2
million compared to letting fees of £1.0 million
on new lettings and renewals of £24.6 million
in 2013.

OCCUPANCY AND PASSING RENT
Like-for-like net occupancy (measured by taking
the vacant area at the start of the year, adding
vacancy on purchases and then comparing
with the vacancy at the end of the year) has
improved by 195,000 sq m across the portfolio
under management. This represents 4.6%
of the total portfolio under management at
31 December 2014 or 29.2% of the vacant
area at the start of the year. This excellent
achievement has come through a combination
of letting vacant space and selling vacant units,
both important components of the Hansteen
business model. For the third year in a row, all
three of our core regions have contributed to
this increase in occupancy.
The passing rent of the portfolio under
management at the start of the year was
£134.9 million per annum. The net effect of
sales and acquisitions was a rent increase of
£5.2 million per annum, the reduction due to
exchange rate movements was £4.1 million per
annum and the closing rent was £137.7 million
per annum. This resulted in a net like-for-like
improvement of £1.7 million or 1.2%.

Germany
Germany, which accounts for approximately
50.3% of Hansteen’s attributable property
investments, has again performed well with
like-for-like income, occupancy and value, all
improving during 2014. The passing rent in 2013
was €62.1 million per annum and the net effect
of sales and acquisitions was a rent increase of
€3.6 million per annum. The closing rent at 31
December 2014 was €67.2 million per annum,
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€67.2m
rent per annum from
Hansteen’s German
property

€29.4m
rent per annum from
Hansteen’s property
in Benelux and
France

a net improvement of €1.6 million per annum
or a 2.4% improvement in the like-for-like rent
roll. The like-for-like occupancy improvement
totalled 26,000 sq m. At the end of the year the
portfolio had 185,000 sq m vacant, representing
11.5% of the total floor area (2013 vacancy:
12.3%).
In 2014 we also completed the refinancing of
both the HBOS and UniCredit debt facilities
which were due to expire in October 2014
and February 2015 respectively. A five-year,
€235 million facility has been provided by a
consortium of lenders led by Landesbank
Hessen-Thüringen Girozentrale (Helaba). We
have hedged 80% of the interest on the loan,
resulting in an interest cost of 3.5% per annum
at the time of refinancing, excluding fees. HSBC
provided a five-year, €108 million facility which,
with a €55 million interest rate hedge, gave an
interest cost of 2.9% per annum at the time
of refinancing, excluding fees. The combined
terms equated to an all-in average rate of 3.8%
per annum, including fees. We were delighted
to secure these well priced facilities with new
lenders and Hansteen has already built on the
relationship with HSBC who also provided the
bank debt for the acquisitions concluded at the
end of the year.
Seven properties in Germany were sold for
€23.2 million generating €3.0 million of profit
above the December 2013 valuation and €4.9
million above gross acquisition costs. The
biggest of these was our Delta Forum estate
in Ginsheim-Gustavsburg which was sold to
a fund managed by CBRE Global Investors
for €16.0 million. With the estate almost fully
occupied, it was identified as ripe for sale and
because the light industrial property sector had
not been previously recognised by institutions,
the sale was a significant step forward for both
Hansteen and the whole sector.
A portfolio of nine properties (the “Pisces
portfolio”) was purchased in December 2014 for
€56.6 million, adding 140,000 sq m of space to
the portfolio. There is currently 19.0% of good
quality, lettable vacant space which presents a
significant opportunity to increase income and
capital values. The rent roll stands at €5.3 million

per annum and when fully let, the portfolio
is expected to produce rent of €6.7 million
per annum. In addition, Hansteen has also
exchanged a conditional contract to purchase
a further estate for €1.5 million with the
transaction expected to complete by the end
of the first quarter 2015. The acquisitions were
funded from existing cash resources along with
a new €40.0 million, five-year loan facility which
has been agreed with HSBC. The assets are all
located in regions which we know well and will
be managed by our existing regional teams.

Netherlands, Belgium
and France
At 31 December 2014, Benelux accounted for
approximately 20.1% of Hansteen’s attributable
property investments, increased from 14.2% at
31 December 2013 due to the acquisition of the
new portfolio announced in June 2014, referred
to in more detail below. 2014 has been a very
successful year with significant increases in
like-for-like rent and occupancy. The passing rent
in 2013 was €13.8 million per annum and the
net effect of sales and acquisitions was a rent
increase of €14.6 million per annum. The closing
rent at 31 December 2014 was €29.4 million
per annum, a net like-for-like improvement of
€1.0 million or 3.4%. The like-for-like occupancy
improvement was 46,000 sq m or 43.4% of the
vacancy at the start of the year. The portfolio
ended the year with 143,000 sq m vacant or
18.1% of the total floor area.
In June 2014 a large portfolio of 41 estates
in the core Randstad area of the Netherlands
was acquired for €106 million. This followed a
complex set of transactions where Hansteen
had previously purchased 50% of a loan
secured against the portfolio from Unicredit
Bank AG. Following the acquisition of the
Unicredit loan, Hansteen agreed to acquire the
remaining 50% of the loan from ING, subject
to a new €60 million five year loan from ING.
Hansteen also agreed to break the swaps on
the loan at a discount to their market value and
subsequently agreed a consensual deal with
the borrower, Lancelot Land BV, to acquire the
underlying property assets.
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UK

£8.9m
rent per annum from
Hansteen’s wholly
owned UK property

Hansteen has made a net investment of £40
million of equity in the transaction which has
contributed almost £27.0 million to the IFRS
pre-tax profit. £4.0 million of finance income
relates to the unwinding of the discount on
the loan that was secured on the portfolio
and £3.2 million of operating income arose
when the loan was satisfied in exchange for
the properties on which it was secured. The
valuation uplift subsequent to the acquisition
of the entire portfolio was £19.5 million. During
the six months of Hansteen ownership, the
Dutch asset management team has already
produced some impressive results reducing
the vacancy from 22.7% to 18.5%.
A multi-let office property at Louvain La
Neuve in Belgium where we had achieved
full occupancy was sold for €6.1 million,
generating a profit of €0.6 million. Over the last
18 months, the asset management team in the
Benelux re-geared several leases and let almost
all of the vacant space, to a range of local and
national occupiers. With the property almost
fully let, it was sold to a local investor, following
a brief marketing exercise.
The French portfolio comprises two properties
totalling 56,000 sq m with an annual rent roll of
€1.7 million.

The size of the owned or co-owned UK
portfolio changed significantly during 2014
with a considerable number of disposals as
well as further investment in HPUT II and the
acquisition of additional units in AIF. The total UK
portfolio as at the year-end comprised 1.8 million
sq m with a rent roll of £62.4 million per annum,
a vacancy of 14.5% and a value of £765.5
million. Hansteen’s proportion of that portfolio
was £356.3 million, approximately 29.6% of
Hansteen’s attributable property investments.

UK WHOLLY OWNED
At 31 December 2014, the wholly owned
UK portfolio had a rent roll of £8.9 million
per annum and a value of £121.2 million,
representing a yield of 7.4% with a vacancy
rate of 18.3%. Included within this value are
three development sites totalling 70.8 hectares
valued at £6.7 million. Like-for-like occupancy
increased by 3,600 sq m or 7.4% of the opening
vacancy and like-for-like rent (once rent free
concessions expire) increased by £0.3 million.

AIF
AIF has had a particularly active and successful
year as the UK team has implemented various
asset management strategies across the
country to improve the rent roll and occupancy
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as well as to sell assets into the buoyant UK
market. The results are impressive with an
improvement in like-for-like rent of £0.3 million
and an increase in like-for-like occupancy
of 75,000 sq m. At 31 December 2014, the
portfolio was valued at £425.5 million, had a
rent roll of £36.9 million per annum, a yield on
the passing rent of 8.7%, and had a vacancy
rate of 14.4%.

£146.1m
Sale of HPUT

During the year we acquired a further 9.2%
stake in AIF for £26.0 million increasing our
share in the fund to 36.7%. The additional stake
was purchased from three vendors at a price
of 46.5p per unit, the March 2014 property
valuation. Since then, the value of the AIF
properties has increased by 9.9%. A further
4.1% holding was purchased in February 2015
for £11.0 million bringing our total holding to
40.8%.

HPUT
The biggest single portfolio sale was completed
in October when HPUT was sold, in two
transactions, for a total of £146.1 million (after
the deduction of rental top-ups). 41 assets
were sold to a fund advised by Brockton Capital
LLP in a partnership with Dunedin Property for
£110.5 million. A separate 50/50 joint venture
between Brockton Capital and Hansteen
acquired Saltley Business Park in Birmingham

for a net price of £35.6 million, an asset which
Hansteen will continue to manage. The 42
assets were sold at above the September
2014 valuation and generated profits of £22.4
million over gross acquisition cost. The total
return of the fund was 55% (an IRR of 9.7%)
and Hansteen has enjoyed the high income
distributions together with asset management
fees. HPUT played a key part in the return of
Hansteen to the UK market and its success led
to the establishment of a second fund, HPUT II
and our re-capitalisation of AIF.

HPUT II
The Fund has acquired 35 properties in ten
separate transactions during the year, and
disposed of 15 properties, nearly all as part
of larger UK portfolio sales. At 31 December
2014, the portfolio consisted of 76 assets
totalling 336,000 sq m with a value of £182.5
million, a vacancy of 15.6%, a passing rent roll
of £14.1 million per annum and a yield on the
passing rent of 7.7%. Like-for-like occupancy has
increased by 6,800 sq m with the like-for-like
rent roll remaining broadly flat.
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FINANCE
NAV
The net assets attributable to equity shareholders at 31 December
2014 were £676.0 million (2013: £554.7 million), an increase of
£121.3 million.
The increase in net assets can be summarised as follows:

2014
£m
Normalised Total Profit

65.3

Tax

12.8
52.5

Equity raised

46.3

Property revaluation

88.0

Exchange and fair value movements

(29.9)

Dividends paid

(33.6)

Share-based payments

(1.4)

Share options exercised

0.2

Acquisition of own shares
NAV movement

(0.8)
121.3
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During the year, the Company raised £46.3
million, net of expenses, through the issue of
44.8 million new shares and 300,000 share
options were exercised. As at 31 December
2014, there were 685.0 million shares in issue
(2013: 641.1 million) with a further 1.5 million
shares under option at exercise prices below
the market price at that time and 22.6 million
potential shares in relation to the LTIP giving
709.1 million shares for dilutive measures (2013:
651.3 million). As at 31 December 2014 IFRS
Diluted NAV per share was 95p (2013: 85p) and
EPRA NAV per share was 102p (2013: 91p).

FOUNDER LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)

102p
EPRA NAV
per share

Our policy of buying value during the downturn
and working the assets has generated capital
and income returns well in excess of 10% per
annum since the current LTIP measurement
period began in January 2013. If continued, this
performance will potentially trigger the Founder
LTIP arrangements. The potential LTIP award
can still only be estimated at this stage as the
out-turn depends entirely on the performance of
the business over the three year period ending
31 December 2015. To the extent that growth
in EPRA NAV plus dividends exceeds 10%
per annum compound over three years, the
Joint Chief Executives will each receive shares
equating to 12.5% of the out-performance.
In the first two years of the LTIP measurement
period, EPRA NAV growth plus dividends
amounted to a gain of 31.7p per share. This
represents a 38% total return. The EPRA NAV
per share figure requires the inclusion of a
number of shares to reflect a possible LTIP
award on the basis of what the award would
be if the measurement period were taken for
only the two years to 31 December 2014 (22.6
million shares). The impact of these shares is
to reduce EPRA NAV per share from 105p to
102p. The IFRS pre-tax profit includes a charge
of £13.6 million related to a potential LTIP
award and associated National Insurance (NI)
contributions. Only the effect of the associated
NI contributions on the LTIP awards affects the
NAV because, in accordance with IFRS, the
charge for the potential LTIP award excluding
the NI contributions is credited back through
equity.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN STOCK
In July 2013 Hansteen issued a €100 million
convertible bond. The money raised was
instrumental in enabling our purchase of
Ashtenne and the debt refinancing in Germany.
None of the conditions that would allow a
bondholder to convert were met during the
year; therefore the dilutive impact of the bonds
is excluded from EPRA NAV. The bonds are
convertible from July 2016. However, there are
conditions under which the bonds are capable
of conversion in 2015 which current trends
would support. The principal terms of the
bonds are detailed in the notes to the financial
statements.

GEARING
Net debt was £416.3 million at 31 December
2014 (2013: £432.2 million). Debt includes a
mark-to-market adjustment of £18.4 million
(2013: £16.2 million) for the convertible bond.
Excluding the mark-to-market adjustment of
the convertible bond, net debt to property
value at 31 December 2014 was 41.1% (2013:
49.3%) and net debt to shareholders equity at
31 December 2014 was 58.8% (2013: 75.0%)
reflecting our continued policy of maintaining
gearing at a prudent level.
As at 31 December 2014 the Group had
borrowings of £526.5 million (2013: £492.9
million) of which £239.6 million was swapped
at an average rate of 0.9% and £96.0 million
was capped at an average rate of 2.1%. The
average all-in borrowing rate for the Group at 31
December 2014 was 3.8% (2013: 3.7%).
The aggregate net assets of the Group’s
associates at 31 December 2014 were
£431.7million (2013: £420.3 million). The
aggregate bank loans of the associates were
£234.5 million (2013: £346.0 million) which are
non-recourse to the Group. The committed
undrawn facilities available to the Associates
amount to £7.8 million (2013: £8.9 million). The
funds drawn under the facilities bear an average
all-in interest rate of 3.9%.
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FUNDING

41.1%
net debt to
property value

In February 2014, Hansteen completed the
refinancing of two facilities in Germany. Both
the UniCredit and HBOS facilities were fully
repaid and two new five-year facilities were
secured with Helaba (€235.0 million) and HSBC
(€108.0 million). Both banks were new to
Hansteen.
The acquisition of the Pisces portfolio in
Germany in December 2014 utilised another
facility with HSBC for €40.0 million, of which
€34.2 million was drawn, expiring in December
2019.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total
bank facilities of £438.3 million (2013: £391.8
million), of which £433.8m were drawn (2013:
£391.8 million). Borrowings are in the same
currency as the assets against which they are
secured. Cash resources at the year-end were
£110.3 million (2013: £57.8 million).
As a result of securing the new facilities
detailed above, the weighted average debt
maturity at 31 December 2014 had increased to
3.8 years and the weighted average maturity of
hedging was 3.1 years.
Analysis of the Group’s bank loan facilities
is set out below:

Bank loan facilities as at 31 December 2014
Lender

Facility
Millions

Amount
undrawn
Millions

Unexpired
term
Years

All -inInterest
Rate

Loan to
Value
Covenant

Interest
Cover
Covenant

Heleba

€221.1

-

4.2

4.1%

60%

1.75:1

€85.3

-

2.3

3.4%

76%

1.65:1

HSBC

€107.1

-

4.2

3.2%

60%

2.00:1

HSBC

€40.0

€5.8

5.0

2.4%

50%

2.00:1

€6.7

-

8.3

1.6%

-

-

ING

€59.2

-

4.5

4.1%

75%

1.25:1

ING

€0.7

-

7.2

1.1%

-

-

2.5

3.3%

70%

1.25:1

1.0

3.7%

65%

1.60:1

FGH

BNP Paribas Fortis

€2.7

-

Total Euro Facilities

€522.7

€5.8

Total Euro Facilities in GBP

£407.1

£4.5

Lloyds Banking Group

£20.9

-

Royal Bank of Scotland

£6.3

-

1.6

4.9%

45%

3.00:1

Royal Bank of Scotland

£4.0

-

3.0

5.5%

60%

2.00:1

£438.3

£4.5

1.8

3.6%

DG HYP

Total Facilities

The Group also has €100.0 million convertible bonds which were issued during 2013, expiring in 2018, with a coupon rate of 4.0%. In
addition, the Group has a €2.7 million finance lease in place to fund a property in Belgium. As at 31 December 2014, the lease has an
unexpired term of 9 years and an interest rate implicit in the lease of 4.8%.
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CURRENCY
Hansteen reports its results in Sterling. As at
31 December 2014, approximately 52% (£349
million or €448 million) of the Group’s net assets
were denominated in Euros. A natural currency
hedge arises from the Group maintaining
borrowings denominated in the same currency
as the assets that they secure. To minimise any
adverse changes in the Sterling: Euro exchange
rate, and a resultant decrease in NAV, Hansteen
has entered various foreign currency contracts.
During the year, Hansteen replaced its two
€100 million currency options, with two new
€100 million options, expiring in June 2016,
at a rate of €1.3/£1. In addition, the Group has
hedged €83.5 million of its expected future
net Euro income with four options expiring at
six monthly intervals between 30 June 2015
and 31 December 2016. These options are to
put €83.5 million and call for GBP at varying
rates from €1.3/£1 to €1.45/£1 with an overall
weighted average of €1.366/£1. The aggregate
of all of these currency options amounts to
€283.5 million providing hedges against 63%
of the Group’s €448 million Euro net assets at
31 December 2014. The options expiring on 30
June 2016 and 31 December 2016 were entered
into during the year. The aggregate premiums
for the options entered into during the year
were £3.7 million.
After taking into account the various currency
hedges, even in a particularly stressed position
of the Euro collapsing by 16.8% to €1.50:£1
from the year end rate, the Group would only
lose approximately £24.0 million or 3.6%
of its net asset value.
The Group’s hedging policy, which is regularly
reviewed by the Board, is as follows:
•

Hedging instruments are used to cover a
substantial proportion of Group Euro net
assets and estimated net Euro income for
the short-term.

•

Hedges are implemented at levels which
the Board believe are cost effective.

•

Hedging is employed as an insurance policy
against the impact of a significant fall in the
value of the Euro against Sterling rather
than a means to speculate for profit.

MARKETS
Although the investment market in our sector
in the UK has improved significantly in a short
time, it feels as if this momentum will continue
for a while due both to the proliferation of
well priced capital (both debt and equity) and
to the gradual but real improvement in the
occupational market and resulting rental growth.
We believe the investment market in our sector
in Germany is also improving and, as with
the UK, we may be surprised by how far and
fast values improve. Over the last year our
experience has been of a confident, successful
economy benefitting from low interest rates and
an artificially low currency. In our world that has
translated into a strong occupational market,
a competitive job market, rising construction
costs and rising house prices, providing
a positive back drop to our activities.
The Benelux market is lagging behind Germany
and the UK both in terms of the strength of the
occupational market and investment values but
it appears to be following a similar path.

PROPERTY CYCLE
Having a view on the property cycle is vital in
setting the direction of the business over the
next few years. Our business will be affected
by the broad economy, interest rates and
the availability of money and currency/cross
border risks. Although every property cycle is
unique, this current one is particularly different
and difficult to read due to the unprecedented
and ongoing intervention in financial markets
by the world’s central banks resulting in what
looks likely to be a long period of relatively low
growth and low interest rates. It feels to us that
the current strength in both the occupational
and investment markets has further to run and
although there are clearly significant geopolitical
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A strong occupational market, a competitive job
market, rising construction costs and rising house
prices, providing a positive backdrop to our activities
risk concerns, were they to materialise, a
diverse, high-yielding industrial property
portfolio is likely to be as good a place to be
invested as any.

OUTLOOK
As a Pan-European business that reports in
Sterling there are risks, both currency and
otherwise, relating to the stability of the
euro zone. We do our best to mitigate these
both by our choice of investment regions and
hedging the currency risk to a large extent.
However, notwithstanding this the outlook

for the business is excellent. We have a high
yielding, diverse portfolio of properties valued
at substantially below replacement cost. The
regional network of offices and teams that
we have established over the last ten years
has proved to be first class at operating the
business. Our portfolio still has a valuable
vacant element to drive the rent roll and rents
which look set to grow as the economies in
which we operate improve. Risk adjusted
returns from industrial property look high
relative to many other investments and there is
a significant weight of capital looking to invest.

Ian Watson

Morgan Jones

Richard Lowes

Joint Chief Executive
6 March 2015

Joint Chief Executive
6 March 2015

Finance Director
6 March 2015
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Board recognises that risk management is essential for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Whilst our principal risks have remained unchanged over the course of the year, senior
management staff and the Board regularly consider the significant risks, which it believes are
facing the Group, identify appropriate controls and if necessary instigate action to improve those
controls.
There will always be some risk when undertaking property investments but the control process
is aimed at mitigating and minimising these risks where possible. The key risks identified by the
Board, the steps taken to mitigate them and additional commentary is as follows:

Principal Risk

Cause

Risk Management

Decline in property
values

Changes in the general economic
environment can lead to the failure of
tenants to renew or extend leases,
as well as increasing the likelihood of
tenant default

The Board believes these risks are reduced
due to its policy of assembling a portfolio
with a wide spread of different tenancies in
terms of actual tenants, industry type and
geographical location as well as undertaking
thorough due diligence on acquisitions.
The level of exposure to individual tenants
is regularly monitored to ensure they are
within manageable limits. Rent deposits
or bank guarantees are requested where
appropriate to mitigate against the effect of
tenant defaults. Where possible, purchases
are achieved at low capital values and with
due investigation of tenant finances.

Over-borrowing
Significant rise in interest rates

In response to these risks Hansteen
maintains a prudent approach to its
borrowing levels by seeking to maintain
headroom within its debt facility covenants
and have cash resources that exceed
immediate loan repayment requirements.
The Board actively monitors current debt
and equity levels as well as considering the
future levels of debt and equity required to
sustain the business. Current and projected
compliance with loan covenants are
monitored and compliance certificates are
prepared on a regular basis. For all money
borrowed consideration is given to procuring
the appropriate hedging instruments to
protect against increases in interest rates.

Loss of rental income
Increase in vacant
property costs

Inability to meet
loan repayment
requirements
Insufficient credit
Facility covenant
breaches
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Principal Risk

Cause

Risk Management

Fluctuations in foreign
currency rates

Investment in overseas countries

In response to this risk the Group’s borrowings
in Europe are in Euro denominated loan
facilities and therefore, to the extent that
investments are financed by debt, a self
hedging mechanism is in place. In relation
to the equity element of the Group’s Euro
investments the Board monitors the level of
exposure on a regular basis and considers
the level and timing of when to take out the
appropriate hedging instruments to cover
this exposure. There is also a risk that one or
more of the countries that the Group operates
in could leave the Euro which may affect the
nature of the Group’s loans and derivatives
or introduce new volatility and currency
exposures for the Group to manage.

Environmental liabilities

Non-compliance with laws and
regulations

Each acquisition undertaken by the Group
includes an environmental report from a
specialist consultancy. These reports may
highlight the need for further investigation and
in some cases remediation. The Group’s policy
is then to either undertake such investigations
or remediation or potentially reject the
purchase as no longer viable.

Loss of REIT status and
payment of additional
corporation tax would
arise from a breach
of REIT compliance
requirements

Non-compliance with REIT legislation

The risk of a breach of certain limits imposed
by REIT legislation is mitigated through
regular review of the Group’s actual and
forecast performance against REIT regime
requirements.
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Corporate and Social
Responsibility
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

HUMAN RIGHTS

Hansteen has a diverse workforce and
commitment to being an equal opportunities
employer. We understand that the performance
and engagement of our employees is critical to
our business success. Our employment policies
and practices reflect a culture where decisions
are made solely on the basis of individual
capability and potential in relation to the needs
of the business.

Hansteen is respectful of Human Rights and
aims to provide assurance to internal and
external stakeholders that we are committed
to the principles of the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights.
We are committed to creating and maintaining a
positive and professional work environment that
complies with general Human Rights principles.

As at 31 December 2014, the composition of Hansteen’s employees, including
both Executive and Non-Executive Directors, was as follows:
Male

Female

Directors – Group
(including Non-Executive Directors)

8

1

Senior managers and Company Secretary
(excluding Directors)

4

2

All staff
(excluding Directors and senior managers
and Company Secretary)

52

44
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Revenue

5

88.1

83.0

Cost of sales

5

(17.8)

(13.8)

Gross profit

5

70.3

69.2

Other operating income

10

6.8

-

Administrative expenses

8

(34.7)

(19.8)

19

43.2

32.4

85.6

81.8

3.6

6.1

62.9

12.6

152.1

100.5

Share of results of associates
Operating profit before gains on investment properties
Profit on sale of investment properties
Fair value gains on investment properties
Operating profit
Finance income

11

10.8

6.6

Finance costs

11

(31.7)

(41.8)

131.2

65.3

12

(12.8)

(7.3)

8

118.4

58.0

118.3

58.0

0.1

-

118.4

58.0

Profit before tax
Tax
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

14

17.6p

9.1p

Diluted

14

17.0p

9.0p

All results derive from continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Profit for the year after tax

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

118.4

58.0

(21.7)

8.2

0.5

-

(21.2)

8.2

97.2

66.2

97.1

66.2

0.1

-

97.2

66.2

Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Exchange differences arising on translating foreign operations
Exchange differences recycled to the income statement on disposal of subsidiary
Total other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

All components of other comprehensive (expense)/income will be recycled to profit and loss.
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Balance Sheets
as at 31 December 2014

Note

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Company
2014
£m

Company
2013
£m

Goodwill

15

0.6

2.3

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

16

0.5

0.3

-

-

Investment property

17

953.9

834.9

-

-

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

18

-

-

393.5

372.4

Investment in associates

19

156.4

124.7

-

-

Deferred tax asset

20

2.4

1.7

1.7

1.7

Derivative financial instruments

21

5.1

0.3

5.1

0.3

1,118.9

964.2

400.3

374.4

Non-current assets

Current assets
Investment properties held for sale

17

7.5

4.6

-

-

Trading properties

22

6.7

10.1

-

-

Trade and other receivables

23

25.3

63.3

125.5

169.8

Derivative financial instruments

21

0.5

1.6

0.5

1.6

Cash and cash equivalents

24

110.3

57.8

75.5

28.5

150.3

137.4

201.5

199.9

1,269.2

1,101.6

601.8

574.3

(34.0)

(31.2)

(120.8)

(132.5)

(3.2)

(2.1)

(0.5)

(0.4)

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

25

Current tax liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

21

-

(0.5)

-

(0.5)

Borrowings

26

(29.2)

(125.5)

-

-

Obligations under finance leases

27

(0.1)

(0.2)

-

-

(66.5)

(159.5)

(121.3)

(133.4)
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Note

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Company
2014
£m

Company
2013
£m

Borrowings

26

(494.6)

(364.4)

-

-

Obligations under finance leases

27

(2.6)

(2.9)

-

-

Derivative financial instruments

21

(5.7)

(4.5)

(21.4)

(20.3)

Deferred tax liabilities

20

(23.4)

(15.3)

-

-

(526.3)

(387.1)

(21.4)

(20.3)

(592.8)

(546.6)

(142.7)

(153.7)

676.4

555.0

459.1

420.6

68.6

64.1

68.6

64.1

Share premium

114.4

114.1

114.4

114.1

Other reserves

(0.5)

0.3

(0.8)

-

Translation reserves

10.9

32.1

-

-

Retained earnings

482.6

344.1

276.9

242.4

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

676.0

554.7

459.1

420.6

0.4

0.3

-

-

676.4

555.0

459.1

420.6

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity
Share capital

28

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

The financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC, registered number 05605371, were approved by the Board of Directors
and authorised for issue on 6 March 2015. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones

Joint Chief Executives
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Share
capital

Group

Share
Other Translation
premium reserves reserves

Merger Retained
reserve earnings

NonControlling
Total
interest

Total

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

63.9

112.7

-

23.9

-

314.9

515.4

0.9

516.3

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

(29.3)

(29.3)

-

(29.3)

Share-based payments

-

-

-

-

-

0.8

0.8

-

0.8

0.2

1.1

-

-

-

(0.3)

1.0

-

1.0

Shares issued as consideration
for minority interest

-

0.3

0.3

-

-

-

0.6

(0.6)

-

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

58.0

58.0

-

58.0

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

8.2

-

-

8.2

-

8.2

64.1

114.1

0.3

32.1

-

344.1

554.7

0.3

555.0

4.5

-

-

-

41.8

-

46.3

-

46.3

Transferred to retained earnings

-

-

-

-

(41.8)

41.8

-

-

-

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

(33.6)

(33.6)

-

(33.6)

Share-based payments

-

-

-

-

-

12.1

12.1

-

12.1

Share options exercised

-

0.3

-

-

-

(0.1)

0.2

-

0.2

Purchase of own shares

-

-

(0.8)

-

-

-

(0.8)

-

(0.8)

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

118.3

118.3

0.1

118.4

Other comprehensive expense for the year

-

-

-

(21.2)

-

-

(21.2)

-

(21.2)

68.6

114.4

(0.5)

10.9

-

482.6

676.0

0.4

676.4

Balance at 1 January 2013

Share option exercise

Balance at 31 December 2013
Shares issued

Balance at 31 December 2014
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Share
capital

Company

Share
Other Translation
premium reserves reserves

Merger Retained
reserve earnings

NonControlling
Total
interest

Total

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

63.9

112.7

-

-

-

237.1

413.7

-

413.7

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

(29.3)

(29.3)

-

(29.3)

Share-based payments

-

-

-

-

-

0.8

0.8

-

0.8

0.2

1.1

-

-

-

(0.3)

1.0

-

1.0

Shares issued as consideration
for minority interest

-

0.3

-

-

-

-

0.3

-

0.3

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

34.1

34.1

-

34.1

64.1

114.1

-

-

-

242.4

420.6

-

420.6

4.5

-

-

-

41.8

-

46.3

-

46.3

Transferred to retained earnings

-

-

-

-

(41.8)

41.8

-

-

-

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

(33.6)

(33.6)

-

(33.6)

Share-based payments

-

-

-

-

-

12.1

12.1

-

12.1

Share options exercised

-

0.3

-

-

-

(0.1)

0.2

-

0.2

Purchase of own shares

-

-

(0.8)

-

-

-

(0.8)

-

(0.8)

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

14.3

14.3

-

14.3

68.6

114.4

(0.8)

-

-

276.9

459.1

-

459.1

Balance at 1 January 2013

Share option exercise

Balance at 31 December 2013
Shares issued

Balance at 31 December 2014

Other reserves comprise a gain upon acquisition of a minority interest and a deficit relating to the purchase of the Company’s
own shares. See note 28.
The merger reserve comprises the share premium generated under the cash-box arrangement for the Placing and Open Offer
in April 2014. No share premium is recorded in the Company’s financial statements through the operation of the merger relief
provisions of the Companies Act 2006. £41.8 million has been transferred to retained earnings, net of costs of £0.8 million in
relation to this share issue.
As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company is not presented as part
of these accounts. The Company’s profit for the financial year amounted to £14.3 million (2013: £34.1 million).
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Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Company
2014
£m

Company
2013
£m

29

39.2

33.5

(13.8)

(53.7)

1.0

1.2

4.8

3.1

Dividends received

-

-

25.8

128.7

Investments in subsidiaries

-

-

(26.1)

(113.1)

Repayment of subsidiary share premium

-

-

46.9

-

(42.9)

(65.2)

-

-

-

(0.3)

-

-

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary

4.8

23.5

-

-

Proceeds from sale of associate

25.1

-

-

-

Additions to property, plant and equipment

(0.4)

(0.2)

-

-

(101.1)

(99.5)

-

-

34.0

63.2

-

-

-

(36.6)

-

-

27.8

3.5

-

-

(51.7)

(110.4)

51.4

18.7

(33.0)

(29.0)

(33.0)

(29.0)

Proceeds from issue of shares

47.3

1.0

47.3

1.0

Cost of issuing shares

(0.8)

-

(0.8)

-

Own shares acquired

(0.9)

-

(0.9)

-

Repayments of obligations under finance leases

(0.2)

(0.2)

-

-

344.8

189.5

-

(1.6)

(284.5)

(144.4)

-

-

(7.0)

(0.4)

(3.6)

(0.4)

0.7

-

0.7

-

Net cash generated by/(used in) financing activities

66.4

16.5

9.7

(30.0)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

53.9

(60.4)

47.3

(65.0)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

57.8

118.9

28.5

95.7

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

(1.4)

(0.7)

(0.3)

(2.2)

110.3

57.8

75.5

28.5

Net cash inflow/(outflow)from operating activities
Investing activities
Interest received

Investments in associates
Acquisition of business

Additions to investment properties
Proceeds from sale of investment properties
Loan acquired
Distributions received from associates
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities
Financing activities
Dividends paid

New borrowings raised (net of expenses)
Bank loans repaid
Outflows on derivative financial instruments
Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

24
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and
Wales on 27 October 2005. The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The
address of the registered office is 1st Floor, Pegasus House, 37-43 Sackville Street, London W1S 3DL.
The Group’s principal activity is investing in mainly industrial properties in Continental Europe and the United Kingdom.
These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in
note 3.

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year. Their adoption has
not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements, but may impact the accounting for
future transactions and arrangements:
IFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to IAS 27

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to IAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 32

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to IAS 39

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Investment Entities

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted
early by the Group:
IFRS 9

Financial Instruments

Amendments to IFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

IFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Amendments to IAS 27

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014

Annual Improvements to IFRSs

The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of the above standards and interpretations in future
periods on the financial statements of the Group.

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

34
Financial Statements

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as detailed in the Directors’ Report on pages
76 - 80 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) adopted by the European Union and
therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment
properties and certain financial instruments.
Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted where relevant to ensure comparability with the current year’s
presentation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity.
Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and
the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the noncontrolling interest in excess of the non-controlling interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interest
of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal.
Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, if any, over the
net amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets and liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of one year.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost. If the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. This is included in the Group’s share of results of associates.
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Goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination. Cashgenerating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale, except investment properties, are measured at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Investment properties classified as held for sale are carried at
fair value.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.
Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis. Where a lease incentive is granted, which does not enhance the value
of the property, or a rent-free period is granted, the effective cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Property management fees are recognised in the period to which they relate.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable.
Revenue from the sale of trading and investment properties is recognised when the significant risks and returns have
been transferred to the buyer. This generally coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing of possession
to the buyer. The profit on disposal of trading and investment properties is determined as the difference between the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the asset at the commencement of the accounting period plus any
additions in the period.

LEASING
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a property is held under a head lease
it is initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium paid on acquisition and the present value of minimum
ground rent payments. The corresponding rent liability to the head leaseholder is included in the balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. Where only the buildings element of a property lease is classified as a finance lease, the ground
rent payments for the land element are shown within operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. When accounting for a lease
of land and buildings, the Group considers the land and buildings elements separately. The Group does not classify those
land elements that are held under operating leases as investment property.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the
results and financial position of each Group company are expressed in Pounds Sterling, which is the functional currency
of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of nonmonetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.
For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as
equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of options that will eventually vest. Fair
value is measured by use of a binomial model or the Company’s share price less the discounted value of estimated future
dividends, as appropriate. The expected life used in the binomial model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

TAXATION
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current and deferred tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted
basis.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is stated after the share of results of associates and profit on sale of subsidiaries, but before changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments, finance income, finance costs and foreign exchange movements relating to
intercompany funding.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
This comprises computers, fixtures and fittings and office equipment, which are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of computers, fixtures and fittings and office equipment,
less residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:
Computer equipment

three years

Fixtures and fittings

five years

Office equipment

three years
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties, which comprises freehold and leasehold property held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, are treated as acquired when the Group assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership.
Acquisitions of investment properties including related transaction costs and subsequent additions of a capital nature
are initially recognised in the accounts at cost. At each reporting date the investment properties are revalued to their fair
values based on a professional valuation at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint
control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.
Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in
which case appropriate provision is made for impairment.

TRADING PROPERTIES
Trading properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are treated as acquired when the Group
assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership. Cost includes development costs specifically attributable to
properties in the course of development. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less further costs
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at
fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL),
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;
or
• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided internally on that basis; or
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments, are not
held for trading and are not designated as FVTPL on initial recognition are classified as AFS. AFS financial assets are
measured at fair value with fair value gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income. On sale or impairment
of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses on AFS financial assets are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
on an AFS equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Where an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss in the period. In the case of AFS equity instruments, if, in a
subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is not reversed through profit
and loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:
• the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
• the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies set out above.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or
• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided internally on that basis; or
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.
The convertible bond is designated as fair value through profit or loss and is presented on the balance sheet at fair
value with all gains and losses, including the write off of issuance costs, recognised in the income statement within net
financing costs. The interest charge in respect of the coupon rate on the bonds has been recognised within net financing
costs on an accruals basis.
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OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and options and interest rate swaps and caps.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is
more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented
as current assets or current liabilities.

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date
used in preparing these accounts are:

INVESTMENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS
In determining the fair value of investment properties there is a degree of uncertainty and judgement involved. The
valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the significant ones of which are the appropriate discount rates,
estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. The Group uses external professional valuers to provide
independent valuations of the investment properties.

ACCOUNTING FOR COMPLEX TRANSACTIONS
The Group frequently enters into transactions for the purchase and sale of investment property, associates and other
financial assets. These transactions tend to be one-off and can be complex. Accounting for the transactions requires
judgments such as in calculating any gain or loss, and deciding upon the presentation in the financial statements.
Transactions are disclosed and where their impact is significant then they are presented separately from the ongoing
financial results of the Group.

DEFERRED TAX
Determining the amount of tax losses to be recognised as deferred tax assets requires management to estimate
the level and probability of future taxable profits that those losses can be offset against, in each relevant entity and
jurisdiction.

CALCULATION OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
In calculating the expense in relation to share-based payments, including the Performance Share Plan and Founder LongTerm Incentive Plan, the Company is required to estimate the probability of share and options awards vesting and the
fair value of a share and option at the grant date and the balance sheet date. These estimates involve making a variety
of assumptions concerning rents and related costs, yields, administrative costs, interest rates, exchange rates, dividend
rates and the rate and level of property acquisitions.
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5.

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales is as follows:
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

78.8

78.4

Trading property sales

3.3

1.4

Property management fees

6.0

3.2

88.1

83.0

(14.3)

(12.2)

(0.1)

(0.2)

(14.4)

(12.4)

(3.4)

(1.4)

Cost of sales

(17.8)

(13.8)

Gross profit

70.3

69.2

Investment property rental income

Revenue
Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties that generated rental income
Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate rental income
Direct operating expenses
Cost of sales of trading properties

Including interest income of £6.6 million (2013: £1.2 million) total revenue was £94.7 million (2013: £84.2 million).

6.

NORMALISED INCOME PROFIT AND NORMALISED TOTAL PROFIT
Normalised Income Profit and Normalised Total Profit are adjusted measures intended to show the underlying earnings of
the Group before fair value movements and other non-recurring or otherwise non-cash one-off items. A reconciliation of
the Normalised Income Profit and Normalised Total Profit reconciled to the profit before tax prepared in accordance with
IFRS rules is set out overleaf.
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Group

2014
Share of
Group associate
£m
£m

Total
£m

Group
£m

2013
Share of
associate
£m

Total
£m

78.8

21.3

100.1

78.4

8.4

86.8

(14.3)

(2.9)

(17.2)

(12.4)

(1.3)

(13.7)

6.0

-

6.0

3.2

-

3.2

Administrative expenses

(20.0)

(2.6)

(22.6)

(16.9)

(1.1)

(18.0)

Net interest payable

(13.1)

(5.0)

(18.1)

(16.6)

(2.3)

(18.9)

37.4

10.8

48.2

35.7

3.7

39.4

3.6

6.9

10.5

6.1

0.7

6.8

Loss on sale of trading properties

(0.1)

-

(0.1)

-

-

-

Direct costs relating to trading properties

(0.1)

-

(0.1)

-

-

-

Total profits on sale of investment and trading properties

3.4

6.9

10.3

6.1

0.7

6.8

Other operating income

6.8

-

6.8

-

0.1

0.1

47.6

17.7

65.3

41.8

4.5

46.3

Negative goodwill and other gains

-

1.6

1.6

0.3

19.3

19.6

Acquisition and reorganisation costs

-

-

-

(3.3)

-

(3.3)

Investment property rental income
Direct operating expenses
Property management fees

Normalised Income Profit
Profit on sale of investment properties

Normalised Total Profit

(13.6)

-

(13.6)

-

-

-

Goodwill impairment

(1.1)

-

(1.1)

-

-

-

Fair value gains on investment properties

62.9

25.1

88.0

12.6

8.3

20.9

-

-

-

(1.6)

-

(1.6)

1.0

-

1.0

(3.6)

-

(3.6)

(5.1)

(1.2)

(6.3)

5.4

0.3

5.7

3.2

-

3.2

(14.5)

-

(14.5)

Foreign exchange losses

(6.9)

-

(6.9)

(4.2)

-

(4.2)

Profit before tax

88.0

43.2

131.2

32.9

32.4

65.3

LTIP charge

Issue costs of convertible bond
Change in fair value of currency options
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps
Change in fair value of convertible bond

Other operating income includes £3.6 million comprising an insurance receipt relating to an investment property
damaged by fire in a previous period and £3.2 million relating to a gain arising on the repayment of a loan that was repaid
as part of the acquisition of a property portfolio in the Netherlands that the loan was secured upon.
Negative goodwill and other gains relates to a gain of £1.3 million recognised on the winding-up of Norwepp Limited
Partnership and a gain recognised upon acquiring units in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust of £0.3 million (2013:
£19.3 million).
The LTIP charge of £13.6 million relates to a potential bonus share award for the three-year period ending on 31
December 2015 (see note 31).
During the year goodwill was impaired by £1.1 million (see note 15).
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7.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS
The Group’s reportable segments are determined by geographic location, which represents the information reported to
the Group’s Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance. A segment’s
result consists of its gross profit as detailed for the Group in note 5. Administrative expenses and net finance costs
are managed as central costs and are therefore not allocated to segments. Gains/(losses) on investment properties by
segment is also presented below.

Group

Revenue
2014
£m

Result
2014
£m

Revenue
2013
£m

Result
2013
£m

Belgium

1.5

1.1

1.9

1.4

France

1.4

1.1

1.7

1.7

Germany

51.2

42.5

52.0

44.2

Netherlands

14.8

11.7

9.2

7.8

UK

19.2

13.9

18.2

14.1

Total segment result

88.1

70.3

83.0

69.2

6.8

-

(34.7)

(19.8)

Share of results of associate

43.2

32.4

Operating profit before gains/(losses) on investment properties

85.6

81.8

Other operating income
Administrative expenses

Gains/(losses) on investment properties by segment:
Belgium

(0.4)

(1.5)

France

(0.1)

0.2

Germany

35.5

16.1

Netherlands

19.3

(4.7)

8.6

2.5

UK

62.9

12.6

3.6

6.1

Operating profit

152.1

100.5

Net finance costs

(20.9)

(35.2)

Profit before tax

131.2

65.3

Total gains on investment properties
Profit on disposal of investment properties
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SEGMENT ASSETS
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocated resources between segments, the Directors monitor
the investment and trading properties attributable to each segment. All assets are allocated to reportable segments
with the exception of investments in associates and elements of cash, derivatives and tax balances that are managed
centrally.
2014
Group
Investment
Trading
Total
properties* properties properties
£m
£m
£m

Other
assets
£m

Additions to
Total investment
assets properties
£m
£m

Noncurrent
assets
£m

Belgium

18.4

-

18.4

1.3

19.7

0.3

18.4

France

11.6

-

11.6

0.9

12.5

0.1

11.6

Germany

604.8

-

604.8

26.3

631.1

48.1

605.3

Netherlands

212.2

-

212.2

5.8

218.0

92.1

212.3

UK

114.4

6.7

121.1

171.2

292.3

0.8

270.9

Total segment assets

961.4

6.7

968.1

205.5

1,173.6

141.4

1,118.5

Unallocated assets
Total assets

95.6

0.4

1,269.2

1,118.9

2013
Group
Investment
properties*
£m

Trading
properties
£m

Total
properties
£m

Other
assets
£m

Total
assets
£m

Additions to
investment
properties
£m

Noncurrent
assets
£m

Belgium

25.5

-

25.5

2.8

28.3

0.3

27.2

France

12.5

-

12.5

2.9

15.4

-

12.5

Germany

575.6

-

575.6

26.4

602.0

19.0

574.9

Netherlands

110.9

-

110.9

3.5

114.4

0.2

111.0

UK

115.0

10.1

125.1

139.8

264.9

60.8

236.1

Total segment assets

839.5

10.1

849.6

175.4

1,025.0

80.3

961.7

Unallocated assets
Total assets

* Includes investment properties held for sale.

76.6

2.5

1,101.6

964.2
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8.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit for the year has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

(6.9)

(4.2)

Acquisition and reorganisation costs

-

(3.2)

Costs relating to issue of convertible bond

-

(1.6)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(0.2)

(0.1)

Impairment of goodwill

(1.1)

-

3.6

6.1

Increase in fair value of investment properties

62.9

12.6

Auditor’s remuneration

(0.6)

(0.5)

Staff costs (see note 9)

(9.5)

(8.5)

(14.8)

(0.8)

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

24.3

9.4

Professional fees

4.0

3.6

Impairment of goodwill

1.1

-

Other

5.3

6.8

34.7

19.8

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts

0.1

0.1

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries

0.4

0.3

Total audit fees

0.5

0.4

-

0.1

Net foreign exchange losses

Profit on sale of investment properties

Share-based payment charge including social security costs (see note 9)

The analysis of administrative expenses is as follows:

Staff costs (see note 9)

Total administrative expenses

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

Audit-related services

0.1

-

Total non-audit services

0.1

0.1

Total auditor’s remuneration

0.6

0.5

Taxation compliance services

Taxation compliance and advisory services fees comprise fees for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax
advisory services.
Details of the Company’s policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services and how the auditor’s independence and
objectivity was safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee’s Report on page 97 - 100. No services were provided
pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.
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9.

STAFF COSTS
The average monthly number of employees (excluding Non-Executive Directors) was:
Group
2014
Number

Group
2013
Number

Finance and administration

55

40

Property

49

41

104

81

£m

£m

8.0

7.0

12.1

0.8

Social security costs on share-based payments

2.7

0.1

Other social security costs

1.1

1.1

Pension costs

0.4

0.4

24.3

9.4

Their aggregate remuneration was:
Wages and salaries
Share-based payments (see note 31)

Pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension schemes of employees.
The Company had no employees in either the current or preceding financial year.

10.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Other operating income includes £3.6 million comprising an insurance receipt relating to an investment property
damaged by fire in a previous period and £3.2 million relating to a gain arising on the repayment of a loan that was repaid
as part of the acquisition of a property portfolio in the Netherlands that the loan was secured upon.

11.

NET FINANCE COSTS
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Interest receivable on bank deposits

0.3

0.4

Other interest receivable

6.3

0.8

Interest income

6.6

1.2

(19.6)

(17.8)

Interest payable on borrowings
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases
Net interest expense
Issue costs of convertible bond
Change in fair value of currency options
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps

(0.1)

(0.1)

(13.1)

(16.7)

-

(1.6)

1.0

(3.6)

(5.1)

5.4

3.2

(14.5)

(6.9)

(4.2)

(20.9)

(35.2)

10.8

6.6

Finance costs

(31.7)

(41.8)

Net finance costs

(20.9)

(35.2)

Change in fair value of convertible bond
Foreign exchange losses
Net finance costs
Finance income

Other interest receivable includes a discount of £1.6 million recognised upon early repayment of a loan facility and a
discount of £4.0 million recognised on a loan purchased in 2013.
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12.

TAX
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

(0.4)

(0.6)

On net income of the current year

3.5

3.2

Total current tax

3.1

2.6

9.7

4.7

12.8

7.3

UK current tax
Credit in respect of prior years
Foreign current tax

Deferred tax (see note 20)
Total tax charge

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 21.5% (2013: 23.25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

131.2

65.3

28.2

15.2

UK tax not payable due to REIT exemption

(5.7)

(4.2)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

(3.8)

0.6

Effect of different tax rates in overseas subsidiaries

(1.6)

(4.2)

(Income)/expenses that are not in taxable profit

(4.0)

0.4

Profit before tax
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 21.5% (2013: 23.25%)
Tax effect of:

0.1

0.1

Adjustment in respect of prior years

(0.4)

(0.6)

Tax charge for the year

12.8

7.3

Change in deferred tax due to change in tax rate

The Group elected to be a UK REIT in 2009 following admission to the Official List. The UK REIT rules exempt the profits
of the Group’s property rental business from UK corporation tax. Gains on UK properties are also exempt from tax
provided they are not held for trading. The Group’s UK activities are otherwise subject to UK corporation tax. To remain
a UK REIT there are a number of conditions to be met in respect of the principal company of the Group, the Group’s
qualifying activity and its balance of business which are set out in the UK REIT legislation in the Corporation Tax Act 2010.

13.

DIVIDENDS
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

19.9

17.2

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Second dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 2.9p (2012: 2.7p) per share
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 2.0p (2013: 1.9p) per share

13.7

12.1

33.6

29.3

As a REIT, the Company is required to pay Property Income Distributions (‘PIDs’) equal to at least 90% of the Group’s
exempted net income, after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate (currently 20%). £9.6 million of the dividends
paid during the year ended 31 December 2014 is attributable to PIDs (2013: £11.9 million).
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14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA) has issued recommended bases for the calculation of certain
earnings per share (EPS) information. Diluted EPRA EPS is reconciled to the IFRS measure in the following table.

Group

2014
Weighted
average
number of
Earnings
shares
£m
m

Earnings
per share
pence

Earnings
£m

2013
Weighted
average
number of
shares
m

Earnings
per share
pence

Normalised Income Profit

48.2

673.9

7.1

39.4

639.0

6.2

Normalised Total Profit

65.3

673.9

9.7

46.3

639.0

7.3

118.3

673.9

17.6

58.0

639.0

9.1

-

24.1

-

4.2

Diluted EPS

118.3

698.0

17.0

58.0

643.2

9.0

Basic EPS

118.3

673.9

17.6

58.0

639.0

9.1

31.9

639.0

5.0

-

4.2

31.9

643.2

Basic EPS
Dilutive share options

Adjustments:
Revaluation gains on investment properties

(62.9)

(12.6)

Profit on the sale of investment properties

(3.6)

(6.1)

1.1

-

(3.2)

-

0.2

-

-

(0.3)

Gain on acquisition of associate

(0.3)

(19.3)

Issue costs of convertible bond

-

1.6

Change in fair value of derivatives

4.1

(1.8)

Change in fair value of convertible bond
(excluding foreign exchange)

3.4

16.5

Impairment of goodwill
Profit on derecognition of a financial asset
Loss on sale of trading properties
Cost of acquiring subsidiaries

(30.8)

(9.4)

Income tax on the above items

10.0

5.3

EPRA EPS

36.3

673.9

-

24.1

36.3

698.0

Adjustment in respect of associates

Dilutive share options
Diluted EPRA EPS

5.4

5.2

5.0
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The calculations for net asset value (NAV) per share are shown in the table below:
Group

Basic NAV
Unexercised share options
Diluted NAV

2014
Equity
Net asset
Equity
shareholders’ Number
value shareholders’
funds of shares per share
funds
£m
m
pence
£m
676.0

685.0

-

24.1

676.0

709.1

99

95

2013
Number
of shares
m

Net asset
value
per share
pence

554.7

641.5

86

0.2

4.4

554.9

645.9

86

645.9

91

Adjustments:
(0.6)

(2.3)

Fair value of interest rate derivatives

5.7

4.8

Adjustments in respect of associates

0.4

0.5

18.4

16.2

Goodwill

Mark-to market of convertible bond
Deferred tax
EPRA NAV

15.

21.1
721.0

13.5
709.1

102

587.6

GOODWILL
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

2.5

2.2

-

0.3

Disposal

(1.8)

-

Impact of foreign currency movements

(0.1)

-

0.6

2.5

At 1 January

0.2

0.2

Impairment

1.1

-

Cost:
At 1 January
Additions

At 31 December
Impairment:

Disposal
At 31 December

(1.3)

-

-

0.2

0.6

2.3

Carrying amount:
At 31 December
By segment:
Belgium
UK

-

1.7

0.6

0.6

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are any indications that goodwill might
be impaired. The recoverable amounts are determined on the basis of fair value less costs to sell by reference to the
valuation of the underlying properties as performed by external valuers.
During the year, the goodwill allocated to the Belgian portfolio was impaired by £1.1 million.
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Fixtures Computer
and fittings equipment
£m
£m

Total
£m

Cost:
At 1 January 2013

0.2

0.3

0.5

Additions

0.1

0.1

0.2

At 1 January 2014

0.3

0.4

0.7

Additions

0.3

0.1

0.4

At 31 December 2014

0.6

0.5

1.1

At 1 January 2013

0.1

0.2

0.3

Charge for the year

0.1

-

0.1

At 1 January 2014

0.2

0.2

0.4

Charge for the year

0.1

0.1

0.2

At 31 December 2014

0.3

0.3

0.6

At 31 December 2014

0.3

0.2

0.5

At 31 December 2013

0.1

0.2

0.3

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

At 1 January

834.9

821.4

Additions – direct property purchases

135.6

62.7

Accumulated depreciation:

Net book value:

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

5.8

17.5

Lease incentives

0.3

1.7

Letting costs

0.1

0.7

Revaluation

62.9

12.6

(27.4)

(91.7)

– capital expenditure

Disposals

(7.5)

(4.6)

Exchange adjustment

(50.8)

14.6

At 31 December

953.9

834.9

Transfer to investment property held for sale

Investment property held for sale:
At 1 January
Disposals
Transfer from investment property
Exchange adjustment
At 31 December

4.6

10.9

(4.6)

(11.4)

7.5

4.6

-

0.5

7.5

4.6
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Included within the property valuation is £2.5 million (2013: £2.5 million) in respect of tenant lease incentives granted.
Investment property includes £2.7 million of property (2013: £3.0 million) held under finance leases.
Properties classified as held for sale at 31 December 2014 represent properties that were actively marketed as at the
year end and have subsequently been sold, or agreements for their sale have been entered into.
All investment properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December and have been valued by independent professionally
qualified external valuers CBRE, DTZ, Jones Lang LaSalle or Knight Frank LLP. The valuations have been prepared
in accordance with the RICS Valuation – Professional Standards January 2014, published by The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards.
The valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the significant ones of which are the appropriate discount rates,
estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. Rental income and yield assumptions are supported by market
evidence where relevant.
The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a finance lease granted to
the Group (see note 26).
In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group’s investment property has been assigned a valuation level in the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in actives markets for identical assets (Level
1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). All of the Group’s investment property as at 31 December
2014 is categorised as Level 3. Details of inputs used in the fair value measurement can be found in the Strategic Report.
An increase in passing rent and a decrease in discount rate would increase the valuation.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into contracts for £2.2 million (2013: £3.7 million) of building works that
were not complete.

18.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Company
2014
£m

Company
2013
£m

372.4

322.4

-

53.6

68.6

64.1

Impairment of subsidiaries

(0.5)

(67.7)

Repayment of share capital

(47.0)

-

Balance at 31 December

393.5

372.4

Cost and net book value:
Balance at 1 January
Additions
Recapitalisation of subsidiaries

The impairment in the year relates to the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries being higher than the net assets of
that particular investment.
No subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation.
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Details of the Company’s significant subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
ownership
interest
%

Proportion of
voting power
held
%

Arman B01 BVBA*

Belgium

100.00

100.00

I.P.I Nossegem NV*

Belgium

100.00

100.00

Small Island Management NV*

Belgium

100.00

100.00

Tycoons Immo BVBA*

Belgium

100.00

100.00

Waterloo Investments NV*

Belgium

100.00

100.00

France

100.00

100.00

Germany

99.76

99.76

Hansteen Bad Schonborn S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Billbrook S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Borsigstrasse S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Braunschweig S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Bremen S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Cologne S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Dormagen S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Dusseldorf S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Geldern S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Germany (4) S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany (5) S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany (7) S.à r.l (formerly Hansteen Dieselstrasse S.à r.l)

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Germany (8) S.à r.l (formerly Hansteen Glinde S.à r.l)

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Gladbeck S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Gottmadingen S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Hannover S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Holzhauser Markt S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Ladbergen S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Leipzig S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Luxembourg Investments S.à r.l

Luxembourg

94.90

50.00

Hansteen Luxembourg S.à r.l

Luxembourg

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Maisach S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Miraustrasse S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Neukirchen-Vluyn S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Neuss S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Paderborn S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Philipp-Reis Strasse S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Pleidelsheim S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen France SAS
Hansteen Gustavsburg S.à r.l & Co KG*
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Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
ownership
interest
%

Proportion of
voting power
held
%

Hansteen Porschestrasse S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Querumer Forst S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Regensburg S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Rodenbach S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Soltau S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Tegel S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Troisdorf S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Viersen S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Waldstrasse S.à r.l*

Luxembourg

99.74

99.74

Hansteen Netherlands B.V.

Netherlands

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Ormix B.V.*

Netherlands

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Netherlands (2) B.V.**

Netherlands

100.00

100.00

Ridderkerk Property B.V.** *

Netherlands

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Belgium Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany (2) Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany (3) Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Germany Residential Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Industrial Estates Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Industrial Investments Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Land Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen LP Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen LP 2 Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen OBP Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Property Investments Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen SPI Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen SPO Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen STC Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Office and Retail Limited

United Kingdom

100.00

100.00

Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited

Jersey

100.00

100.00

Hansteen Jersey Investments Limited

Jersey

100.00

100.00

* Held indirectly ** Incorporated during the year
Each of the undertakings listed above is engaged in property development, investment or management.
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19.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

124.7

32.7

Investment in associates

42.9

64.5

Capital redemption

(6.1)

-

(25.1)

-

Cost and net book value:
Balance at 1 January

Disposal of associate

43.2

32.4

Distributions received

(20.1)

(2.9)

Distributions accrued

(3.1)

(1.7)

-

(0.3)

156.4

124.7

Share of results of associates

Less share of profit on properties sold to associates
At 31 December

During 2014, the Group acquired a further 9.2% stake in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust, bringing its total investment
to 36.7% (2013: 27.5%). The Group also acquired additional units in Hansteen UK Industrial Property II Limited
Partnership, retaining its holding of 33.3%.
In October 2014 the Group disposed of the majority of the portfolio held in Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust
(“HPUT”). This was facilitated by a reorganisation of legal entities during which the Group exchanged its 33% interest
in HPUT for a 33% interest in a new unit trust, Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust, which became the legal owner of HPUT.
Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust retained one property before disposing of the remaining portfolio by selling its investment in
HPUT. As part of the sale of HPUT, Hansteen invested a further 17% in Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust and therefore owned
50% at the year-end.
The Group has the following interests in associates:
Place of
establishment

Ownership
%

Voting rights
%

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust II (“HPUT II”)

Jersey

33.3

30.0

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust (“AIF”)

Jersey

36.7

36.7

Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust (“SUT”)

Jersey

50.0

50.0

Name of associate

AGGREGATED AMOUNTS RELATING TO ASSOCIATES
HPUT
£m

HPUT II
£m

SUT
£m

AIF
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

Investment properties

-

182.5

36.3

425.5

644.3

712.6

Cash

-

8.4

0.4

31.3

40.1

74.2

Borrowings

-

(68.4)

(19.6)

(146.4)

(234.5)

(346.0)

Other net liabilities

-

(4.5)

(0.5)

(13.3)

(18.2)

(20.5)

Net assets

-

118.0

16.5

297.1

431.7

420.3

HPUT
£m

HPUT II
£m

SUT
£m

AIF
£m

2014
£m

2013
£m

9.0

10.7

0.4

42.2

62.2

33.4

21.1

25.4

0.8

79.8

127.0

46.0

Summarised balance sheets

Revenues
Profit

The revenues and profit above relate to the period of ownership by the Group.
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20.

DEFERRED TAX
Group

Carrying
Currency
value of contracts and
investment interest rate
properties
derivatives
£m
£m

Short-term
timing
Losses differences
£m
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2014

(16.3)

0.3

3.9

(1.5)

(13.6)

(Charge)/credit to income

(10.4)

0.8

0.2

(0.3)

(9.7)

Disposal

1.2

-

-

-

1.2

Exchange differences

1.3

-

(0.2)

-

1.1

At 31 December 2014

(24.2)

1.1

3.9

(1.8)

(21.0)

-

0.7

1.7

-

2.4

(24.2)

0.4

2.2

(1.8)

(23.4)

Short-term
timing
Losses differences
£m
£m

Total
£m

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Company

At 1 January 2014

Carrying
Currency
value of contracts and
investment interest rate
properties
derivatives
£m
£m
-

0.1

1.6

-

1.7

Charge to income

-

(0.1)

0.1

-

-

At 31 December 2014

-

-

1.7

-

1.7

Deferred tax assets

-

-

1.7

-

1.7

At 31 December 2014 the Group has unutilised tax losses of £75.2 million (2013: £95.4 million) available for offset against
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £16.0 million (2013: £14.3 million) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining losses due to the unpredictability of future
taxable profits.
Unutilised losses carried forward at 31 December for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised expire as follows:
Group
2014
£m

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

Expiring in 2017

-

0.8

-

-

Expiring in 2018

-

1.5

-

-

Expiring in 2019

1.7

4.0

-

-

Expiring in 2020

16.6

17.8

-

-

Expiring in 2021

0.1

-

-

-

Carried forward without restriction

40.8

57.0

24.4

40.4

Total

59.2

81.1

24.4

40.4

The UK corporation tax rate will fall on 1 April 2015 from the current rate of 21% to 20%. The impact of the rate change is
not significant to the Group.
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21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate and foreign
exchange risks. Further details on interest rate and foreign exchange risks are included in note 34.
Group
2014
£m
Currency options
Interest rate swaps

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

5.6

1.9

5.6

1.9

(5.7)

(5.0)

-

(0.5)

-

-

(21.4)

(20.3)

(0.1)

(3.1)

(15.8)

(18.9)

Current assets

0.5

1.6

0.5

1.6

Non-current assets

5.1

0.3

5.1

0.3

-

(0.5)

-

(0.5)

(5.7)

(4.5)

(21.4)

(20.3)

Convertible bond

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

FOREIGN CURRENCY DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group and Company

Average contract
exchange rate
2014
2013
EUR:GBP EUR:GBP

Notional
principal amount
2014
2013
£m
£m

Fair
value
2014
2013
£m
£m

Currency options - buy Euro: sell Sterling
In less than one year

1:1.300

1:1.253

26.1

224.9

0.5

1.6

In more than one year but less than two

1:1.322

1:1.300

194.7

27.9

5.1

0.3

INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group

Average contract
fixed interest rate
2014
2013
%
%

Notional
principal amount
2014
2013
£m
£m

Fair
value
2014
2013
£m
£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year

1.2

2.5

20.0

62.5

-

(0.5)

In more than one year but less than two

0.8

2.0

12.4

187.8

-

(4.0)

In more than two years but less than five

0.7

0.9

209.5

52.4

(5.7)

(0.5)

241.9

302.7

(5.7)

(5.0)

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year
In more than one year but less than two
In more than two years but less than five

2.7

4.0

32.8

20.8

-

-

-

4.5

-

77.6

-

-

2.2

-

63.8

-

-

-

96.6

98.4

-

-
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Company

Average contract
fixed interest rate
2014
2013
%
%

Notional
principal amount
2014
2013
£m
£m

Fair
value
2014
2013
£m
£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year

-

2.5

-

62.5

-

(0.5)

-

4.0

-

20.8

-

-

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year

22.

TRADING PROPERTIES
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

10.1

10.8

Additions

-

0.6

Disposals

(3.4)

(1.3)

6.7

10.1

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

Balance at 1 January

Balance at 31 December

The carrying amount approximates to the fair value of the trading properties.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
2014
£m
7.8

6.2

-

-

-

-

125.2

87.4

Amounts owed by related parties

0.7

1.7

-

-

Other receivables

9.7

49.5

0.2

82.1

Prepayments and accrued income

7.1

5.9

0.1

0.3

25.3

63.3

125.5

169.8

Trade receivables
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

Group trade receivables are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtful debts of £5.9 million (2013: £4.0
million). The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
In 2013, other receivables included a £36.5 million loan that was secured on a property portfolio in the Netherlands. The
loan was acquired with the intention to purchase the property portfolio which was completed in June 2014. The loan was
repaid as part of the transaction to purchase the properties.

24.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair value. Included within cash and cash
equivalents is £1.9 million of restricted cash (2013: £7.2 million).
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group
2014
£m
Trade payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Other payables
Accruals
Deferred income

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

7.5

6.7

-

-

-

-

118.1

132.3

3.9

2.5

0.1

-

14.5

13.8

2.6

0.2

8.1

8.2

-

-

34.0

31.2

120.8

132.5

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The
average credit period taken for trade purchases by the Company is 15 days (2013: 15 days). For most suppliers no interest
is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the
outstanding balances at various interest rates. The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair
value.

26.

BORROWINGS
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

433.8

391.2

Convertible bond

96.3

99.5

Unamortised borrowing costs

(6.3)

(0.8)

523.8

489.9

29.2

125.5

494.6

364.4

30.9

125.5

Bank loans

Current liability
Non-current liability
The bank loans and convertible bond are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand
Between one and two years

14.3

175.3

Between three and five years

482.3

184.4

2.6

5.5

530.1

490.7

4.5

-

Over five years

Undrawn committed facilities
Expiring between two and five years
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Covenants
Facility

Drawn

£20.9 million

£20.9 million

£6.3 million

£6.3 million

€85.3 million
€2.6 million

Expiry

Loan to value

Interest cover

December 2015

65%*

160%

August 2016

45%

300%

€85.3 million

April 2017

76%*

165%

€2.6 million

June 2017

70%

125%

January 2018

60%

200%

-

-

£4.0 million

£4.0 million

€100.0 million

€100.0 million

July 2018

€107.0 million

€107.0 million

December 2018

60%

200%

€221.1 million

€221.1 million

February 2019

60%

175%

€59.3 million

€59.3 million

June 2019

75%

125%

€40.0 million

€34.2 million

December 2019

50%

200%

€7.4 million

€7.4 million

-

-

January 2021 to March 2025

* On the £20.9 million facility the loan to value covenant reduced to 55% on 1 January 2015. On the €85.3 million facility the loan to value
covenant reduces by 2% per year.

Security for secured borrowings at 31 December 2014 is provided by charges on property with an aggregate carrying
value of £929 million (31 December 2013: £744 million).
In July 2013, Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited issued €100 million of convertible bonds with a coupon of 4.0%. The
bonds will, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company. The initial
conversion price was set at a premium of 22.5% above the volume weighted average share price between launch and
pricing, and will be subject to adjustments pursuant to the terms and conditions of the bonds.
Bonds can be converted at the option of the bond holder from 15 July 2016. The bonds may be converted before this date
if Hansteen’s share price (expressed in Euro at the current exchange rate) is more than 130% of the current conversion
price (expressed in Euro at a fixed exchange rate) for a period of 20 consecutive dealing days within the 30 dealing days
ending on the day before the last dealing day of any calendar quarter. Bond holders can only exercise their conversion
rights in the quarter following the quarter in which the ratio was above 130% for the required period.
Under the terms of the bonds, the Company will have the right to elect to settle any conversion entirely in ordinary
shares of the Company, cash or a combination of shares and cash. If not previously converted, redeemed or purchased
and cancelled, the bonds will be redeemed at par in July 2018.

INTEREST RATE AND CURRENCY PROFILE
Group

2014
%

2014
£m

2013
%

2013
£m

Euro

2.9

489.9

2.3

448.0

Sterling

3.7

31.2

3.6

42.7

3.0

530.1

2.5

490.7

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate risk. Further
details on interest rate risk are included in note 34 and the interest rate derivatives are disclosed in note 21. After taking
into account the effect of the interest rate swaps the weighted average interest rates are 3.3% for the Euro borrowings
(2013: 3.5%) and 4.3% for the Sterling borrowings (2013: 4.0%).
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27.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
Group

Minimum
lease payments
2014
2013
£m
£m

Present value of
lease payments
2014
2013
£m
£m

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.2

In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

0.9

1.3

0.7

0.8

2.0

2.7

1.9

2.1

3.1

4.3

2.7

3.1

(0.4)

(1.2)

-

-

2.7

3.1

2.7

3.1

Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months

0.1

0.2

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2.6

2.9

Less: future finance charges
Present value of lease obligations

The finance lease is denominated in Euro and has an outstanding term of 9 years (2013: 10 years). For the year ended 31
December 2014 the interest rate implicit in the lease was 4.8% (2013: 4.8%). Interest rates are fixed every five years,
and interest rate and capital repayments adjusted to reflect this.
The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under the
finance lease are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of shares
m

31 Dec
2014
£m

Number
of shares
m

31 Dec
2013
£m

640.5

64.1

638.8

63.9

44.8

4.5

-

-

0.3

-

1.3

0.2

-

-

0.4

-

685.6

68.6

640.5

64.1

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1 January 2014
Equity raise April 2014
Share options exercised
Acquisition of minority interest
At 31 December 2014

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to fixed income. There are no specific
restrictions on the size of a shareholding or the transfer of shares, except for UK REIT restrictions.
On 2 April 2014, pursuant to a placing and open offer, the Company raised gross proceeds of £47.1 million (£46.3 million
net of expenses) through the issue of 44.8 million shares at a price of 105p per ordinary share.
On 17 April 2014, 0.3 million share options were exercised. See note 31.
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During the year, the Company acquired some of its own shares in order to settle obligations under the Performance
Share Plan arrangement. A summary is presented below:
Number
m

£m

-

-

6 June 2014

0.3

0.3

17 June 2014

0.6

0.6

(0.1)

(0.1)

0.8

0.8

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

At 1 January 2014
Acquired

Issued to employees
12 and 24 June 2014
At 31 December 2014

29.

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Group
2014
£m
118.4

58.0

14.3

34.2

12.2

0.8

12.2

0.8

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

0.2

0.1

-

-

Impairment of goodwill

1.1

-

-

-

(43.2)

(32.4)

-

Profit on sale of investment properties

(3.6)

(6.1)

-

-

Gain on disposal of loan

(3.0)

-

(3.4)

-

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments

Share of profits of associate

(62.9)

(12.6)

-

-

Impairment of investment in subsidiary

-

-

0.5

67.7

Dividends received

-

-

(25.8)

(128.7)

Net finance costs

20.9

35.2

(2.9)

24.8

Tax charge

12.8

7.3

(0.1)

(0.5)

Operating cash inflows/(outflows) before movements in working capital

Fair value gains on investment properties

52.9

50.3

(5.2)

(1.7)

Decrease in trading properties

3.4

0.7

-

-

Increase in receivables

2.2

(2.7)

8.5

(48.5)

Increase in payables

0.4

4.1

(11.9)

2.7

Cash generated from/(used by) operations

58.9

52.4

(8.6)

(47.5)

Income taxes paid

(1.6)

(2.9)

-

-

(18.1)

(16.0)

(5.2)

(6.2)

39.2

33.5

(13.8)

(53.7)

Interest paid
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
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30.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSEE
As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Within one year

1.5

1.1

In the second to fifth years inclusive

5.0

2.9

32.5

31.8

39.0

35.8

After five years

The expense relating to operating leases in the year was £1.3 million (2013: £1.1 million).
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for land relating to certain of
its buildings that are classified as investment properties, rentals payable in respect of its office properties and rentals for
company cars.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

31.

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

72.0

62.2

161.8

126.2

77.4

57.3

311.2

245.7

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had three equity settled share schemes.
• 2005 Share Option Scheme
• Founder Long-term incentive plan
• Performance Share Plan
The total share-based payment charge for the year under these schemes was £12.1 million (2013: £0.4 million).

2005 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain senior employees of the Group and during the year had two
participants. Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market price of the ordinary shares of the
Company on the date of grant. The options have a three-year vesting period that is not subject to performance conditions.
The options expire if they remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant. Options are normally
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. No options were granted under this scheme during
the year. The following table summarises the movements in the schemes during the year:
Exercise price

Outstanding at
start of year

Exercised

Outstanding at
end of year

Number
exercisable

Average remaining
life (years)

2006

120.5p

100,000

-

100,000

100,000

1.2

2011

83.4p

300,000

(300,000)

-

-

-

Year issued

The aggregate fair value of the outstanding options is £38,000. The weighted average remaining life is 1.2 years
(2013: 4.7 years).
The total share-based payment charge for the year under this scheme was £nil (2013: £nil).
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FOUNDER LONG-TERM INCENTIVE SCHEME (LTIP)
The Joint Chief Executives are entitled to a bonus share award dependant on the growth in EPRA NAV. The target for the
bonus is that EPRA NAV per ordinary share (after adding back dividends and other returns to shareholders) must exceed
a compound growth rate of 10% per annum in a three-year period. The bonus for each Chief Executive is calculated as
12.5% of the excess growth over the 10% growth target.
Any amount payable under the LTIP is to be satisfied in full by ordinary shares of the Company. No shares have been
issued under the LTIP since flotation in 2005. This bonus scheme will be repeated to reward performance in each threeyear period, the current performance period ends on 31 December 2015.
The price per share to be used when determining the number of shares which the Joint Chief Executives are entitled to
will be the average mid-market quotation for such shares on the Main Market for the first 20 dealing days immediately
following the end of the relevant period. It is expected that a bonus share award will be earned for the current
performance period. As such, a charge has been recognised during the current year which takes into account the excess
growth over the performance target over the performance period, multiplied by the number of shares in issue as at the
year end. Two thirds of the calculated bonus has been accrued in the income statement for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: £nil).
The total share-based payment charge for the year under this scheme was £11.1 million with associated social security
costs of £2.5 million (2013: £nil).

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP)
The PSP awards share options with a nil exercise price to executive directors and senior employees. The number of
options granted is calculated with reference to the employee’s salary and the share price prior to the grant date. To
reflect the fact that 2012 was a transitional year between the 2005 Share Option Scheme and the PSP, two awards were
granted to participants, one with a two-year performance period and one with a three-year performance period. Vesting
of the awards is staggered over the three years following the performance period, with one third vesting each year if
performance targets are met. Performance targets are based on Total Shareholder Return and Net Asset Value growth,
plus dividends, relative to a peer group of listed UK REITs.
Exercise price

Outstanding at
start of year

Granted

Exercised

Lapsed

Outstanding at
end of year

2012

nil

2,868,895

-

(62,331)

(268,021)

2,588,103

2013

nil

1,270,244

-

-

-

1,270,244

-

8.2

2014

nil

-

1,095,168

-

-

1,095,168

-

9.3

Year issued

Number Average remaining
exercisable
life (years)
205,690

7.5

The total share-based payment charge for the year under this scheme was £1.0 million with associated social security
costs of £0.2 million (2013: £0.8 million and £0.1 million respectively).
The inputs to the valuation were:
2012

2013

2014

72.3p

86.4p

109.2p

nil

nil

nil

51.7p

69.8p

79.4p

31.1%

24.3%

22.86%

Expected life

2 years

2 years

2 years

Risk free rate

0.21%

0.30%

1.07%

Weighted average share price
Weighted average exercise price
Weighted average fair value
Expected volatility

32.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
A second dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of 3.0p per share will be payable on 21 May 2015 to
shareholders on the register on 24 April 2015. At the same time, a special dividend of 3.0p per share will be paid.
The UK corporation tax rate will fall on 1 April 2015 from the current rate of 21% to 20%. The impact of the rate change is
not significant to the Group.
On 20 February 2015, the Group acquired an additional 4.1% stake in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust for £11.0
million.
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33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
GROUP
TRADING TRANSACTIONS
During the year, Group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who are not members of the
Group:
Provision
of services
2014
2013
£m
£m

Amounts owed
from related parties
2014
2013
£m
£m

Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership

1.0

1.2

0.1

0.4

Treforest Unit Trust

0.1

0.1

-

-

Hansteen UK Industrial Property II Limited Partnership

1.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership

3.0

1.1

-

0.9

Apia Regional Office Fund

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

Norwepp Limited Partnership

0.2

0.2

-

0.1

5.9

3.0

0.6

1.8

The Group provides management services to companies controlled by its associates, which are made at prices
comparable to those that would be charged for similar services provided to unrelated parties. See note 19 for details of
the Group’s associates. Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust’s subsidiaries include Hansteen UK Industrial Property
Limited Partnership, Treforest Unit Trust and Hansteen Industrial Parks Limited. Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit
Trust II’s subsidiaries include Hansteen UK Industrial Property II Limited Partnership. Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust
subsidiaries include Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership, which in turn had a 50% stake in Norwepp Limited
Partnership.

REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group and the Company,
is set out below. The remuneration is paid by Hansteen Limited and forms part of the management fee charged to
the Company. Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the
Remuneration Committee’s Report on pages 102 - 114.
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Short-term employee benefits

2.0

1.9

Post-employment benefits

0.2

0.2

2.2

2.1
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COMPANY
TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES
The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment activities. Interest
is charged on these loans at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.0% (2013: 1.75% to 3.0%) or EURIBOR plus 1.10% to 3.75% (2013:
1.10% to 1.75%). The Company provides interest-free loans to Hansteen LP Limited and Hansteen LP No 2 Limited, to
finance their operations.
The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited, which undertakes day-today management of the Group on behalf of the Company.
Surplus funds in subsidiary companies are loaned to the Company at EURIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.75% (2013: 1.75% to
3.75%), LIBOR plus 1.75% (2013: 1.75%) or 5.02% (2013: 4.97%) for Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited.
A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:
Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries

68.7

1.5

Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries

(6.8)

(35.5)

Interest bearing loans made by subsidiaries

(11.7)

(88.2)

Interest-bearing loans repaid to subsidiaries

19.1

81.0

5.4

11.7

(25.0)

(3.9)

2.0

2.2

Interest paid in respect of interest-bearing loans

(4.9)

(4.7)

Management fees charged to the Company

(1.6)

(1.6)

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

125.2

87.4

(118.1)

(132.3)

7.1

(44.9)

Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries
Interest-free loans repaid by subsidiaries
Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans

The balances outstanding at the year end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables
Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other payables
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below sets out the categorisation of the financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2014. Where
the financial instruments are held at fair value the valuation level indicates the priority of the inputs to the valuation
technique. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall
within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest priority level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement of the instrument in its entirety.
Valuation
level

Group
2014
£m

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

Financial assets
Designated as held for trading
Currency options

2

5.6

1.9

5.6

2.0

18.2

57.4

125.4

169.5

110.3

57.8

75.5

28.5

128.5

115.2

200.9

198.0

134.1

117.1

206.5

200.0

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash deposits

Financial liabilities
Designated as held for trading
Interest rate swaps

2

(5.7)

(5.0)

-

(0.5)

Convertible bond derivative

3

-

-

(21.4)

(20.3)

(5.7)

(5.0)

(21.4)

(20.8)

(96.3)

(99.5)

-

-

(2.7)

(3.1)

-

-

(427.5)

(390.4)

-

-

(430.2)

(393.5)

-

-

(25.9)

(23.1)

(120.8)

(132.5)

(558.1)

(521.1)

(142.2)

(153.3)

At fair value through profit and loss
Convertible bond

1

At amortised cost
Obligations under finance leases
Borrowings

Other financial liabilities
Payables and accruals

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, the obligations under finance leases, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings, all as disclosed in the balance sheet.
The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the Board. As part of
this review, management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and debt.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

Obligations under finance leases
Borrowings

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

2.7

3.0

427.5

390.4

96.3

99.5

(18.4)

(16.2)

(110.3)

(57.8)

Net debt

397.8

418.9

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

676.0

554.7

Convertible bond
Convertible bond mark-to-market
Cash and cash equivalents

58.8%

75.5%

Carrying value of investment and trading properties

968.1

849.5

Net debt to value ratio

41.1%

49.3%

Group
2014
£m

Group
2013
£m

418.9

325.0

(53.9)

60.5

Net debt to equity ratio

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT IN THE YEAR

Net debt at beginning of year
Cash flow
Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
New bank loans raised (net of expenses)
Bank loans repaid
Repayments of obligations under finance leases

344.8

189.5

(284.5)

(144.4)

(0.2)

(0.2)

-

(20.4)

Other
Disposed
Foreign exchange movements recognised in equity
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the income statement
Amortisation of bank loan fees

(25.5)

8.2

(3.9)

(0.3)

2.1

1.0

397.8

418.9

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to economically hedge
these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Board and management on a continuous
basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes.
The Group’s management reports quarterly to the Board and bi-annually to the Audit Committee, an independent body
that monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.
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MARKET RISK
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates. The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and
foreign currency risk, including:
• interest rate swaps and caps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and
• forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on translation of the
Group’s investment in foreign operations which have the Euro as their functional currency.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises from the fact that there are foreign operations which transact business
denominated in Euro, with the translation of the local trading performance and local net asset to Sterling for each financial
period and at each balance sheet date giving rise to an exposure to fluctuations in the Sterling:Euro exchange rate. The
Group’s approach to managing this exposure is to fund investments in Euro-denominated operations with equity that is
partly hedged by forward currency options to limit the overall exposure of the Group.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated financial instruments at the reporting date are as
follows. The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial instruments in Euro-denominated operations is also presented.
2014
Financial instruments

GBP
£m

EUR
£m

Total
£m

40.6

(479.7)

(439.1)

-

(220.8)

(220.8)

40.6

(700.5)

(659.9)

Non-financial instruments

273.3

830.3

1,103.6

Net exposure

313.9

129.8

443.7

GBP
£m

EUR
£m

Total
£m

(14.4)

(394.3)

(408.7)

Less principal amount of currency options

2013
Financial instruments
Less principal amount of currency options

-

(223.7)

(223.7)

(14.4)

(618.0)

(632.4)

Non-financial instruments

251.5

709.4

960.9

Net exposure

237.1

91.4

328.5

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The Group is exposed to the Euro through its operations in Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. At 31
December 2014 the net assets of the Group were £676.4 million (2013: £555.0 million) of which £348.8 million were
denominated in Euro (2013: £319.0 million). At 31 December 2014 the Group had currency options in place to buy £215.1
million for €283.5 million.
The table below shows the impact of a 10% strengthening or weakening of sterling against the Euro in relation to
financial instruments alone.
Group
2014
£m

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

Increase foreign exchange rates by 10%
Increase in profit before tax

10.3

10.8

9.2

10.5

Increase in other comprehensive income

36.1

35.7

-

-

(7.2)

(2.1)

(5.9)

(1.8)

(44.2)

(43.6)

-

-

Decrease foreign exchange rates by 10%
Decrease in profit before tax
Decrease in other comprehensive income
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INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the use of
interest rate swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments during the year.
Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax:
Group
2014
£m

Group Company
2013
2014
£m
£m

Company
2013
£m

Increase interest rates by 1%

9.6

6.5

(3.6)

2.1

Decrease interest rates by 1%

(7.5)

(6.5)

(0.4)

(1.7)

There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity.

INTEREST RATE SWAP AND CAP CONTRACTS
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest
amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Under interest rate cap contracts, the Group has limited its
exposure to increases in interest rates by capping interest payable on its borrowings. Such contracts enable the Group to
mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on
the issued variable rate debt held.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £128.5 million (2013: £115.2 million) comprising trade and other
receivables and cash and cash deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to its trade receivables of
£9.1 million (2013: £6.2 million) which consist principally of rents due from tenants. The balance is low relative to both the
current and net assets of the Group and the Company.
Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. There is no
concentration of credit risk within the portfolio to either geographical business segment or company as the Group has a
well spread diverse customer base with no one customer accounting for more than 1% (2013: 1%) of the gross rent roll.
Other receivables consist principally of tax and VAT receivables. These items do not give rise to significant credit risk.
Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular basis. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities. As at 31 December 2014 the net debt to property value was
41.1% and the Group had £39.1 million of investment and trading properties that were not secured against the Group’s
borrowings.

LIQUIDITY AND INTEREST RISK TABLES
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. When
the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the interest
and foreign currency rates as at the reporting date.
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Less than
one year
£m

One to
two years
£m

Borrowings

(30.9)

(14.3)

(482.3)

(2.6)

(530.1)

Interest on borrowings

(15.8)

(15.0)

(27.1)

(0.3)

(58.2)

Obligations under finance leases

(0.2)

(0.2)

(0.9)

(1.8)

(3.1)

Interest rate swaps

(1.8)

(1.8)

(3.3)

-

(6.9)

(25.9)

-

-

-

(25.9)

(74.6)

(31.3)

(513.6)

(4.7)

(624.2)

Group

Two to More than
five years five years
£m
£m

Total
£m

2014

Payables and accruals

2013
Borrowings

(125.6)

(175.2)

(184.4)

(5.5)

(490.7)

Interest on borrowings

(11.4)

(7.9)

(15.6)

(0.9)

(35.8)

Obligations under finance leases

(0.3)

(0.3)

(1.0)

(2.5)

(4.1)

Interest rate swaps

(4.2)

(0.9)

(0.3)

-

(5.4)

(23.1)

-

-

-

(23.1)

(164.6)

(184.3)

(201.3)

(8.9)

(559.1)

Less than
one year
£m

One to
two years
£m

Two to More than
five years five years
£m
£m

Total
£m

-

-

(21.4)

-

(21.4)

(120.8)

-

-

-

(120.8)

(120.8)

-

(21.4)

-

(142.2)

-

-

(20.3)

-

(20.3)

(1.4)

(0.4)

-

-

(1.8)

(132.5)

-

-

-

(132.5)

(133.9)

(0.4)

(20.3)

-

(154.6)

Payables and accruals

Company

2014
Convertible bond derivative
Payables and accruals

2013
Convertible bond derivative
Interest rate swaps
Payables and accruals
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Directors’ Biographies
Executive Directors

Ian Watson

Morgan Jones

Richard Lowes

Joint Chief Executive

Joint Chief Executive

Finance Director

Qualified as a solicitor with
Gouldens. Founder Director
and Joint Chief Executive of
Ashtenne from 1989 to 2005.
Founder Director of Hansteen.

Qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Touche Ross.
Founder Director and Joint
Chief Executive of Ashtenne
from 1989 to 2005. Founder
Director of Hansteen.

Joined Hansteen on 1 January
2006 as Chief Financial Officer
and appointed Finance Director
in October 2011. Prior to this
he worked in a similar role
for Ashtenne Holdings plc
between 1997 and 2005 and
as Finance Director of Trafalgar
House Property Limited and
a Director of Ideal Homes
Holdings PLC from 1988 to
1995. Fellow of the ACCA.
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Non-executive Directors

James Hambro

Richard Mully

Richard Cotton

Non-Executive Chairman

Non-Executive Director
and Senior Independent Director

Non-Executive Director

Appointed Non-Executive
Chairman of Hansteen in
December 2005. Currently
also Chairman of J O Hambro
Capital Management Group
Limited, James Hambro
& Partners and Director of
Primary Health Properties PLC.

Appointed to the Board in April
2006. Currently also Executive
Director of Starr Street Limited,
member of the Supervisory
Board of Alstria Office REIT-AG
and Senior Advisor to Actis
LLP, Non-Executive Director of
Aberdeen Asset Management
PLC and Senior Independent
Director of Interior Services
Group plc and St Modwen
Properties PLC. Formerly the
Co-Founder and Managing
Partner of Soros Real Estate
Partners LLC and Grove
International Partners LLP.

Appointed to the Board in
October 2010. Currently
also Chairman of Centurion
Property Limited and NonExecutive Director of Big Yellow
Group PLC. Formerly Managing
Director of Forum Partners
and Head of Real Estate at JP
Morgan Cazenove.
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Humphrey Price

Rebecca Worthington

Melvyn Egglenton

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in
October 2010. Currently also
Non-Executive Director of
LondonMetric Property PLC.
Formerly Finance Director of
Pillar Property PLC and Finance
Director of Arlington Securities
PLC. Fellow of the ICAEW.

Appointed to the Board in
June 2014. Founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Lodestone
Capital Partners LLP. Currently
also Non-Executive Director of
Aga Rangemaster Plc. Formerly
Finance Director and Deputy
Chief Executive of Quintain
Estates and Development PLC.
Fellow of the ICAEW.

Appointed to the Board in June
2014. Currently also Chairman
of Pendragon PLC, Trustee
of the James Family Trusts,
Non-Executive Director of
Soho Estates Holdings Limited
and Non-Executive Director
of Irwin Mitchell Holdings
Limited. Formerly Senior
Partner at KPMG Birmingham
and Regional Chairman of
KPMG Midlands. Fellow of the
ICAEW.
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Officers and Advisors

COMPANY SECRETARY

PROPERTY VALUERS

Richard Phillip Lowes

Jones Lang LaSalle
22 Hanover Square
London W1S 1JA

REGISTERED OFFICE

1st Floor, Pegasus House
37-43 Sackville Street
London W1S 3DL
Registered in England & Wales
No. 5605371
STOCKBROKERS

Peel Hunt LLP
Moor House
120 London Wall
London EC2Y 5ET
AUDITORS

Deloitte LLP
Abbotts House
Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BD
SOLICITORS

Jones Day LLP
21 Tudor Street
London EC4Y 0DJ

Knight Frank LLP
Lancaster Buildings
77 Deansgate
Manchester M3 2BW
DTZ
125 Old Broad Street
London EC2N 2BQ
CBRE Limited
Henrietta House
Henrietta Place
London W1G 0NB

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

FGH Bank N.V.
Leidseveer 50
Postbus 2244
3500 GE Utrecht
The Netherlands

Lloyds TSB Bank PLC
10 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7AE
Landesbank Hessen-Thüringen
Immobilienfinanzierung Südwest
Girozentrale
MAIN TOWER
Neue Mainzer Straße 52 - 58
60311 Frankfurt am Main
Germany
HSBC Bank PLC
Corporate Banking Real Estate
4th Floor
3 Temple Quay
Temple Back East
Bristol BS1 6DZ
ING Commercial Banking
ING Real Estate Finance
P.O. Box 1800, 1000 BV
Amsterdam
Bijlmerplein 888, 1102 MG
Amsterdam
The Netherlands
REGISTRARS

DLA Piper Scotland LLP
Rutland Square
Edinburgh EH1 2AA

The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
Corporate Banking
3rd Floor
2 Whitehall Quay
Leeds LS1 4HR

Capita Registrars Limited
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34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
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Directors’ Report
The Directors present their Annual Report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
Corporate Governance Statement set out on page 94
forms part of this report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is the parent company of a group whose
principal activities comprise property investment,
development, management and associated business,
focussing on industrial property investments in
Continental Europe and the UK, although it will also
seek to profit from opportunistic acquisitions in other
property sectors both in the UK and abroad.
The subsidiary undertakings principally affecting the
profits or net assets of the Group in the year are listed
in note 18 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group’s focus is on UK and Continental European
industrial investments which in the opinion of the
Board have high yields along with cheap financing
costs. To date these investments have been in the
UK, Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands.
A smaller part of the Group’s activity is dedicated to
opportunistic property investment opportunities which
to date have included land and residential investments.
More detailed information about the Group’s business,
activities and financial performance is incorporated
into this report by reference and can be found in the
Strategic Report on pages 6 to 23.
There are no further matters to report under section
417 of the Companies Act 2006.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Directors consider the following to be key
performance indicators (KPIs), as disclosed in the
Strategic Report:
Key performance indicator

2014

2013

Normalised Income Profit

£48.2m

£39.4m

Normalised Total Profit

£65.3m

£46.3m

Net asset value (NAV)
(per share)

99p

86p

EPRA NAV (per share)

102p

91p

£84.2m

£73.5m

41.1%

49.3%

Dividend (per share)
– excluding special dividend

5.0p

4.8p

Yield
– excluding special dividend

8.7%

8.6%

Occupancy

86%

85%

Annualised rental income
Net debt to value

DIVIDEND
For the year ended 31 December 2014, an interim
dividend of 2.0p per share was paid on 20 November
2014, of which 1.0p per share was attributable to a
REIT Property Income Distribution (“PID”) in respect
of the Group’s tax exempt property rental business.
The second dividend of 3.0p per share will be payable
on 21 May 2015 to shareholders on the register on 24
April 2015 of which 1.4p per share will be attributable
to a PID. At the same time, a special dividend of 3.0p
per share will be paid.

RESULTS
The results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
shown in the Income Statement on page 26 of the
financial statements. The pre-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was £131.2 million (2013:
£65.3 million) and the net assets are shown in the
balance sheet as £676.4 million (2013: £555.0 million).
The EPRA NAV per share was 102p (2013: 91p). In
the Directors’ view the Normalised Income Profit,
Normalised Total Profit and EPRA NAV growth are
the most appropriate performance measures for the
Group.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
The UK corporation tax rate will fall on 1 April 2015
from the current rate of 21% to 20%. The impact of
the proposed rate change is not material to the Group.
Michaella Hornbuckle resigned as Company Secretary
on 18 February 2015. On the same date, Richard
Lowes was appointed as Company Secretary.
On 20 February 2015, the Group acquired an additional
4.1% stake in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust
for £11.0 million.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board agrees and reviews policies and financial
instruments for risk management. Further information
on financial instruments is contained in note 34 to the
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties to which the
Group is exposed are detailed in the Strategic Report
on pages 21 to 22.

GOING CONCERN
The Group’s business activities, together with
the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position as well as the financial
position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position
and the borrowing facilities are described in the
Strategic Report on pages 6 to 23. In addition, note
34 to the financial statements includes the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its
capital; its financial risk management objectives;
details of its financial instruments and hedging
activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity
risk.
The Group’s debt maturity profile for its long-term
funding is detailed in the Strategic Report on page
18. As announced in February 2014 as part of the
German refinancing, Hansteen secured new five year
facilities with HSBC and Helaba. In June 2014, the
Group entered into new facilities with ING when the
HBI Netherlands portfolio was acquired. In December
2014, further acquisitions in Germany led to additional
facilities being secured with HSBC. All of these
facilities are due to mature in 2019. As part of its risk
management process the Group has considered its
forecast cash flows and forecast covenant compliance
taking into account:

continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the issued share capital, together with
details of the movements in the Company’s issued
share capital during the year are shown in note 28. The
Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry
no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to
one vote at general meetings of the Company.
There are no specific restrictions on the size of a
holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both
governed by the general provisions of the Articles of
Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are
not aware of any agreements between holders of the
Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on
the transfer of securities or on voting rights.
Details of employee share schemes are set out in
note 31.
No person has any special rights of control over the
Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully
paid.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who served throughout the year are
detailed on page 71 - 73. The appointment and
replacement of Directors by the Company is governed
by its Articles of Association, the Companies Acts and
related legislation. The Articles themselves may be
amended by special resolution of the shareholders.
In accordance with the Governance Code all the
current serving Directors will retire and offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2015
Annual General Meeting, with the exception of Richard
Mully who will retire from the Board at the Annual
General Meeting.

• the impact on the various loan covenants of
reductions in the property valuations, decline in
rental income and increase in interest rates; and

None of the Directors had any interests in any material
contract during the year relating to the business of the
Group.

• the impact of potential events arising from
adverse movements in general economic
conditions on the Group’s operating cash flow
generation, including tenancy failures and
increased vacancies.

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of
Association, the Articles, any legislation and any
directions given by special resolution, the business of
the Company will be managed by the Directors, who
may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether
relating to the management of the business of the
Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise
all the powers of the Company to borrow money
and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings,
property, assets and uncalled capital and to issue
debentures and other securities and give security for
any debt, liability or obligation of the Company to any
third party.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient
headroom and available finance to manage
its business risks successfully. Based on this
assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS

The Company has made qualifying third-party
indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors
which were made during the year and remain in force
at the date of this report.

As at 4 March 2015, the Company had been notified,
in accordance with the UK Listing Authority’s
Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules, that the
following shareholders held, or were beneficially
interested in, 3% or more of the voting rights in the
Company’s issued share capital:
No. of ordinary
shares held

Percentage

Aberforth Partners

20,312,210

3.2%

Legal & General Investment Management

26,871,756

4.2%

M&G Investment Management

27,629,634

4.3%

Baillie Gifford

27,712,084

4.3%

Ruffer

30,756,580

4.8%

Lloyds Banking Group - Scottish Widows Investment Partnership

31,749,992

5.0%

BlackRock

34,497,767

5.4%

Jupiter Asset Management

37,509,635

5.9%

Schroders plc

85,973,262

13.4%

323,012,920

50.4%

PAYMENT POLICY

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities
within the terms established with suppliers. At
31 December 2014 there are 15 days’ purchases
outstanding (2013: 15 days) in respect of the
Company’s trade creditors.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made a charitable donation
of £10,000 to the property industry charity LandAid
(total charitable donations in 2013: £11,000). LandAid
uses the collective resources, expertise and influence
of the property industry to help disadvantaged young
people in the UK access the buildings, skills and
opportunities they need to achieve their potential.
Through grant awards and pro bono support, LandAid
brings together charitable giving from across the
industry to make a real difference to young lives.
There were no political donations in the year
(2013: £nil).

It is Hansteen’s policy to comply with environmental
legislation and relevant codes of practice. In line with
recent guidance issued by DEFRA (the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs), we set out
below the required information for the year ended 31
December 2014.
QUANTIFICATION AND REPORTING METHODOLOGY
We have followed the 2013 UK Government
environmental reporting guidance. DEFRA greenhouse
gas conversion factors have been used for the
purposes of this report.
We have used the operational control approach,
which therefore only includes information regarding
those emissions for which we have direct control
and influence on. We have therefore included carbon
emissions derived from gas, electricity, heating oil and
district heating consumptions attributable to Hansteen.
Energy consumption is assessed as attributable to
Hansteen if it is used for the benefit of vacant property
space or for common parts or communal facilities
at properties which are held directly or managed by
Hansteen.
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OPERATIONAL SCOPES

INTENSITY MEASUREMENT

We have measured our Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions as detailed below.

We have chosen the metric gross global Scope 1 and
2 emissions in tonnes of Co2e per vacant m2, per m2
and per £m revenue as these are common metrics for
our industry sector.

BASE YEAR
We have used 2013 as our base year as it is the first
year for which we have reliable data and it was typical
in respect of our operations.

2014
Scope 1 – direct emissions
from owned/controlled operations

tonnes Co2e

Intensity
measurement
tonnes
Co2e/vacant m2

Intensity
measurement
tonnes
Co2e/total
m2

Insensity
measurement
Specific
tonnes exclusions, % this
Co2e/£m
represents for
revenue
relevant scope

-

-

-

-

None

182

0.0175

0.00478

0.0013

None

Scope 2 – indirect emissions from the use
of purchased electricity and heating
under our operational control:
Belgium
France
Germany
Netherlands
UK
Associates
Total gross emissions
Carbon offsets
Green tariff
Total annual net emissions

2013
Scope 1 – direct emissions
from owned/controlled operations

-

-

-

-

None

1,241

0.0067

0.0008

0.0088

None

345

0.0026

0.0005

0.0024

None

308

0.0068

0.0013

0.0022

None

1,739

0.0090

0.0012

0.0123

None

tonnes Co2e

Intensity
measurement
tonnes
Co2e/vacant m2

Intensity
measurement
tonnes
Co2e/total
m2

Insensity
measurement
tonnes
Co2e/£m
revenue

Specific
exclusions, % this
represents for
relevant scope

-

-

-

-

None

335

0.027

0.0079

0.0037

None

-

-

-

-

None

3,815
3,815

Scope 2 – indirect emissions from the use
of purchased electricity and heating
under our operational control:
Belgium
France
Germany

1,355

0.0073

0.0009

0.0148

None

Netherlands

191

0.0020

0.0006

0.0021

None

UK

331

0.0010

0.0001

0.0036

None

1,832

0.0057

0.0010

0.0200

None

Associates
Total gross emissions

4,004

Carbon offsets

-

Green tariff

-

Total annual net emissions

4,004
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TARGETS
Our emissions reduction target is to reduce our gross
global Scopes 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of Co2e/m2
on a like-for-like basis by 10% from 2015 to 2020. We
achieved a like-for-like reduction of 5.4% during 2014.

AUDITORS
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant
audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company’s auditor
is unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps
that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware
of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted
in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006.
Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as auditor and a resolution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on
behalf of the Board

Richard Lowes

Company Secretary
6 March 2015
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the group
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent
company financial statements under IFRSs as adopted
by the EU. Under Company law the Directors must
not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, International Accounting Standard 1
requires that Directors:
• properly select and apply accounting policies;
• present information, including accounting policies,
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;
• provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and
financial performance; and
• make an assessment of the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
• the financial statements, prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as a whole;
• the strategic report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face;
and
• the annual report and financial statements, taken
as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and strategy.
This responsibility statement was approved by the
board of Directors and is signed on its behalf by:

Morgan Jones and Ian Watson

Joint Chief Executives
6 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Hansteen Holdings PLC

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

In our opinion:
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit for the
year then ended;
• the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union;
• the parent company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
• the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
The financial statements comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the
Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity,
the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements and
the related notes 1 to 34. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

GOING CONCERN

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the
Directors’ statement contained within the strategic report that
the Group is a going concern. We confirm that:
• we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate; and
• we have not identified any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF
MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

The assessed risks of material misstatement described below
are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team:
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

INVESTMENT PROPERTY VALUATION
See also note 17 to the financial statements, and the
Audit Committee’s Report on pages 97 to 100.
At 31 December 2014, the Group held wholly-owned
investment and trading properties valued at £968.1
million, in addition to owning a share of three funds
holding properties valued at £644.3 million.
Investment properties are held at fair value on the
balance sheet, resulting in a net valuation gain of £62.9
million during the year. The fair values are calculated
using information, such as lease agreements and
tenancy data, in addition to professional judgement
concerning marketing conditions and factors impacting
individual properties.
The valuation process is inherently judgemental,
which is why we consider this to be a risk of material
misstatement. In particular, changes in assumptions
such as the time a property will remain vacant when a
tenant leaves, the rent free period required to attract
a new tenant, and the level of expenditure required
to maintain the property can lead to significant
movements in the value of the property, as can changes
in the underlying market conditions.

• We tested the integrity of the information provided
by management to the valuers by assessing
supporting evidence, such as comparing rental
income to the tenancy schedules and evaluating
occupancy through physical inspection.
• We applied audit analytics to the tenancy and
valuations data by analysing changes in the
property values compared to factors such as
market averages, occupancy rates and yields.
• We met with management’s third party valuers
of the German, UK and Netherlands property
portfolios to confirm their independence, the
scope of the work they were requested to perform
by management, and the valuation process
applied. For each property we identified as having
significant or unusual valuation movements in our
audit analytics, we challenged the valuers on the
key assumptions applied and, where considered
appropriate, obtained the detailed valuation
workings to check the validity of the assumptions
applied and the accuracy of the calculation
performed. We also assessed the valuations for a
sample of other properties. Our work was led by
senior members of the audit team, supported by
internal property valuations specialists.
• We visited a sample of properties during the
year to assess the condition of the buildings and
validate the occupancy data in the group’s tenancy
schedules.
• We also considered the value realised on disposed
properties compared to previous valuations, to
determine the reliability of historical valuation
outputs.
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

CALCULATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE LTIP
See also note 31 to the financial statements, the
Audit Committee’s Report on pages 97 to 100, and the
Remuneration Committee’s Report on pages 102 to 114.
On 1 January 2013, Hansteen granted three-year Long
Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’) options to the joint CEOs,
as set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 102 to
114.
Payment under the scheme is made if the EPRA
Net Asset Value (‘NAV’) per share of the Group at 31
December 2015 exceeds 110.7 pence (representing a
compound annual growth of 10% over the three year
period). At 31 December 2014 the Group’s EPRA NAV
per share is 101.7 pence, as stated in Note 14. Before
the impact of the LTIP the EPRA NAV per share would
be 105.4 pence, or 114.9 pence when dividends paid
are added back in line with the scheme rules. This
equates equating to an average annual growth of 19.1%
over the two year period.
A charge of £13.6 million (including national insurance
costs) has been recorded in the year, which required
significant judgement in considering the potential
outcomes of the NAV growth based performance
conditions over the remaining period of the current
three-year scheme.
There is a further risk that insufficient prominence and
disclosure will result in the impact of the LTIP scheme
not being clear to users of the financial statements.
In previous LTIP performance periods, the conditions
of the scheme were not expected to be met and,
as a result, no charge was accrued. This is the first
performance period of the LTIP scheme in which
management expects options will vest. Due to the
level of management judgement and the size of the
resulting charge, we have included the calculation and
presentation of the LTIP as a risk.

• We reviewed minutes of the meetings of the Board
of Directors and the Remuneration Committee, in
addition to evaluating the scheme agreements and
other correspondence between the Group and the
LTIP members.
• We checked the mechanical accuracy of the
calculation and challenged the key assumptions
applied by management. As part of our work, we
evaluated the accuracy of assumptions applied in
previous periods for both the LTIP and other sharesettled award schemes, and we evaluated the
sensitivity of the charge to changes in underlying
assumptions.
• We met with the Chairman of the Audit Committee
to discuss the key assumptions, the outcome of
our audit work, and the level of disclosure in the
annual report.
• We evaluated the level of disclosure in the annual
report, in particular the presentation of the
charge within diluted metrics and non-statutory
performance measures.
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

SIGNIFICANT NON-RECURRING TRANSACTIONS
See also notes 10, 19 and 28 to the financial
statements, and the Audit Committee’s Report on
pages 97 to 100.
The nature of the Group’s operations give rise to nonrecurring transactions which can result in significant
gains and losses.
In the current year, the Group completed a number of
significant non-recurring transactions including:
• the purchase of a loan receivable from ING, and
the subsequent acquisition of the HBI Netherlands
portfolio resulting in a total gain from these
transactions of £17.1 million;
• the placing of 44.8 million ordinary shares to raise
gross proceeds of £47.1 million using a ‘cash box’
structure;
• the acquisition of £26.0 million of units in the
Ashtenne Industrial Fund (‘AIF’);
• the disposal of the majority of the portfolio held
in HPUT, resulting in a net gain of £2.9 million
included within the share of results of associates;
and
• the disposal of 16 wholly-owned properties,
resulting in a net gain on disposal of £3.6 million.
These transactions are, by their nature, one-off and
often complex. There are management judgements
inherent in their measurement, such as in calculating
the value of the transaction or its resulting gain or loss,
and their presentation in the financial statements has a
material impact on the results for the year.

• We evaluated the presentation of significant
non-recurring transactions in the annual report.
Throughout our audit work we were alert to
significant non-recurring transactions, in addition to
completing a review of legal correspondence and
Board meeting minutes, to assess whether the list
of these transactions we considered was complete
• For all significant non-recurring transactions, we
assessed whether:
o each transaction was accounted for in
compliance with IFRS;
o each transaction was accurately recorded by
agreeing the value to underlying documentation;
o the underlying assumptions and judgements
in the measurement of each transaction were
appropriate; and
o each transaction was fairly presented and
disclosed in the financial statements.
• In respect of significant non-recurring transactions
that occurred during the year, our procedures also
included:
o checking the valuation of the gain arising on the
HBI transaction, and assessing the transparency
of disclosure in the financial statements;
o agreeing the share placing to cash receipts and
evaluating the impact of the cash-box structure
placing on the Group’s equity reserves;
o agreeing the AIF unit acquisition accounting to
purchase documentation;
o considering the presentation of the gain on
disposal of the HPUT portfolio and agreeing the
disposal proceeds to sales agreements and bank
receipts; and
o checking the gains and losses recognised on
a sample of property disposals to property
valuation reports and sale and purchase
agreements.
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

GOING CONCERN AND COVENANT COMPLIANCE
See also note 34 to the financial statements, and the
Audit Committee’s Report on pages 97 to 100.
The Group has significant levels of external debt,
including bank borrowings of £433.8 million and
convertible bonds with a fair value of £96.3 million as
set out in Note 26.
Bank borrowings are subject to a number of
financial covenants, including minimum loan to value
ratios and interest cover. Compliance with these
banking covenants at the balance sheet date and
forecast compliance for future periods are integral
to management’s assessment of going concern.
They also require consideration of the sensitivity of
covenant compliance to valuation movements, interest
rate increases, and changes in underlying trading
performance.
The group’s assessment of going concern is a
judgemental process which requires estimates of
future cash flows based on management’s view of
future business prospects. The key judgements applied
by management in developing the projected cash
flows include occupancy rates, rental growth, capital
expenditure on existing assets, planned acquisition or
disposal activity, and working capital movements.

• We assessed the judgments and assumptions
applied by management in their going concern
assessment and covenant compliance forecasts
including examining current and forecast business
and economic trends and significant developments
during and subsequent to the year ended 31
December 2014.
• Our challenge of management’s assumptions
included performing a sensitivity analysis
to determine the extent of change in those
assumptions that, either individually or collectively,
could give rise to a covenant breach and considered
the likelihood of such a movement, or combination
of movements, in those assumptions arising. In
addition, we reviewed the historical forecasting
accuracy to assess the reliability of the process.
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

TAXATION
See also note 12 to the financial statements, and the
Audit Committee’s Report on pages 97 to 100.
The Group is a Real Estate Investment Trust (‘REIT’).
There is a risk that significant tax charges may be
payable if the group does not comply with the REIT
requirements.
The global tax landscape of the Group gives rise to
complexities around transfer pricing and there is
potential exposure to tax overseas jurisdictions. There is
judgement required in the application of tax legislation
in overseas jurisdictions, which gives rise to a risk that
permanent establishments may be created resulting in
tax liabilities for which provisions need to be recorded in
the financial statements.
At 31 December 2014 the Group has unutilised tax
losses of £75.2 million for which a deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of £16.0 million of
such losses. There is a level of judgement required in
determining the extent to which such assets should
be recognised, where the losses are not ring-fenced
as a result of the Group’s REIT status. The judgements
include the application of local tax legislation, and the
level of anticipated future profits to offset the unutilised
losses.

• We challenged the assumptions and judgements in
management’s assessment of current and forecast
REIT compliance. Our challenge of management’s
assumptions included performing a sensitivity
analysis to determine the extent of change in those
assumptions that, either individually or collectively,
could give rise to non-compliance with REIT
conditions and considered the likelihood of such a
movement, or combination of movements, in those
assumptions arising.
• We evaluated the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions and estimates in
relation to the likelihood of generating suitable
future taxable profits to support the extent of
recognition of deferred tax assets by considering
the performance of the companies for the year
and performing sensitivity analysis on the business
forecasts.
• We considered compliance with overseas tax
regulations and assessed the judgements
made in assessing tax exposures by reviewing
correspondence with tax authorities and performing
recalculations for entities with significant tax
balances or judgements, and on a sample of tax
computations, using our overseas tax specialists.
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Last year our report included one other risk which is not included in our report this year:
• accounting for derivative financial instruments – the complex initial recognition and presentation of the
convertible bond was completed in the year ended 31 December 2013 and the instrument is now held at the
publicly traded value.
The description of risks above should be read in conjunction with the significant issues considered by the Audit
Committee discussed on pages 97 to 100.
Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and not to express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures. Our opinion on the
financial statements is not modified with respect to any of the risks described above, and we do not express an
opinion on these individual matters.

OUR APPLICATION
OF MATERIALITY

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed
or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.
We determined materiality for the group to be £9.5 million (2013:
£9.0 million), based on professional judgment, the requirements of
auditing standards and the financial measures most relevant to users
of the financial statements. We have used 1.5% (2013: 2%) of net
assets as the benchmark for determining materiality.
In addition to net assets, we consider EPRA earnings per share to be
a critical financial performance measure for the group on the basis
that it is a key metric to analysts and investors. EPRA earnings per
share is based on the group’s EPRA earnings of £36.3m, which is
reconciled to IFRS profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the
parent in Note 14 of the financial statements. We applied a lower
threshold of £1.9 million (2013: £1.8 million) for testing all balances
impacting EPRA earnings, which represents 5% (2013: 6%) of EPRA
earnings.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to
the Committee all audit differences in excess of £190,000 (2013:
£180,000), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported
to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified
when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE
SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group
and its environment, including group-wide controls, and assessing
the risks of material misstatement.
As in the prior year, our Group audit scope focused primarily on the
audit work in the United Kingdom, Germany and the Netherlands,
where full audits were carried out based on our assessment of
the identified risks of material misstatement identified above. The
Group audit team performed the audits of the entities in the United
Kingdom and Germany, and a component auditor performed the
audits of the entities in the Netherlands based on instructions from
the Group audit team. In addition, the Group team also tested
the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures
to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant risks of
material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of
the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances.
The components subject to a full audit represent the principal
business units of the Group and account for 97% (2013: 96%) of the
Group’s revenue, 99% (2013: 97%) of the Group’s profit before tax
and 97% (2013: 97%) of the Group’s net assets. Our audit work was
executed at levels of materiality applicable to each component which
were lower than group materiality, and ranged between £5.2 million
and £7.1 million.
The Group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned
visits that has been designed so that either the Senior Statutory
Auditor or another senior member of the Group audit team visits
each of the Group’s principal business units at least once every three
years, including the overseas components audited directly by the
Group audit team. In the year ended 31 December 2014, we visited
operations in the United Kingdom, Germany and the Netherlands.
In years when we do not visit a significant component that is
audited by a component auditor, we will include the component
audit partner in our team briefing, discuss their risk assessment, and
review documentation of the findings from their work. The Senior
Statutory Auditor or another senior member of the Group audit team
participated in all of the close meetings of the Group’s principal
business units.

OPINION ON OTHER
MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion:
• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006; and
• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ADEQUACY OF
EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED
AND ACCOUNTING
RECORDS

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion:
• we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in
our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have nothing to report arising from these matters.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
compliance with ten provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code. We have nothing to report arising from our review.

OUR DUTY TO READ OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are
required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the annual
report is:
• materially inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements; or
• apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of performing our audit; or
• otherwise misleading.
In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified
any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during the
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual
report is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual
report appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated
to the audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed. We confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or misleading statements.
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RESPECTIVE
RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors. Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our
quality control procedures are effective, understood and applied.
Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional
standards review team and independent partner reviews.
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Darren Longley
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading, United Kingdom
6 March 2015
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Chairman’s Corporate
Governance Statement
Introduction
As Chairman, I am responsible for the Group’s corporate governance
framework. During the year the Board achieved and maintained high
standards of corporate governance and will continue to adapt this
framework as necessary in 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Board formally evaluates its performance and
that of its Committees annually. Having undertaken
its first externally facilitated Board evaluation in 2013
in line with the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Board undertook the 2014
evaluation using a series of questionnaires. In addition,
I met with each of the Non-Executive Directors
on a one-to-one basis to evaluate their individual
performances and the Non-Executive Directors all met
without me present to evaluate my performance as
Chairman.

Stephen Gee retired as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company at the Annual General Meeting in
2014 and Richard Mully will retire as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting on 8 June 2015.

Overall, the findings of the evaluation were positive,
recognising the amount of work that the Board and
senior management team has undertaken during the
year to improve procedures in a number of areas. The
Board is confident that the performance of the Board
and the Committees was and is effective and that
all Directors demonstrate full commitment in their
respective roles.

Also at the Annual General Meeting Richard
Cotton will retire as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and be succeeded by Melvyn Egglenton.

As part of the process of succession planning for NonExecutive Directors Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca
Worthington were welcomed to the Board on 10 June
2014. Melvyn and Rebecca were also appointed as
members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee effective from the same date.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Richard
Mully for his substantial contribution and commitment
to Hansteen’s growth and success over the past nine
years.

Following the Board evaluation, I remain satisfied
that the performance of all the Directors proposed
for re-election continues to be effective and that each
Director demonstrates commitment to their role.

James Hambro

Chairman
6 March 2015
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Corporate Governance
Framework
The Company complied with the main principles of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
published by the Financial Reporting Council in
September 2014 throughout the year with the
exception of, for the period to 10 June 2014, the
composition of the Remuneration Committee. Prior
to 10 June 2014 the Remuneration Committee
comprised only two independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Chairman who was considered
independent on appointment. The Company
recognises that only having two independent NonExecutive Directors on the Remuneration Committee
until 10 June 2014 did not comply with the provisions
of the Code however, we believe that for a Company
with only 111 employees, as at 31 December 2014,
two independent Non-Executive Directors, one of
whom held the role of Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, together with the Non-Executive
Chairman (considered independent on appointment)
was an appropriate composition. Following the
appointments of Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca
Worthington to the Remuneration Committee on
10 June 2014 the composition of the Remuneration
Committee is currently Code compliant.
The Company complies with the Corporate
Governance Statement requirements pursuant to
the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules by virtue of the information
included in this Corporate Governance Statement on
page 94 together with information contained in the
Directors’ Report on pages 76 - 80.

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is responsible to the shareholders of the
Company for the strategy and future development
of the Group and the efficient management of its
resources. As a result, the Board has a schedule of
matters reserved for its decision, which includes
approval of annual budgets, acquisition and
divestment policy, approval of major capital projects,
the raising of finance and management policies.
The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion, with the
information it needs to enable it to discharge its

duties. The Board is also kept informed of changes
in relevant legislation and changing commercial
risks, and each Director has access to independent
professional advice and the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. The Board meets at least five
times a year with ad hoc meetings as required.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board currently comprises six independent
Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, and
three Executive Directors. The biographies of these
Directors are set out on pages 71 - 73. The Board is
satisfied that the Non-Executive Directors, each of
whom is independent from management and has no
commercial or other connection with the Company,
are able to exercise independent judgement. Richard
Mully is the Senior Independent Director.
All directors, except Richard Mully, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2015 Annual General
Meeting.

THE CHAIRMAN AND JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES
ROLES
The division of responsibilities between the role of
Chairman, and the roles of the Joint Chief Executives,
is clearly defined, set out in writing and reviewed
annually by the Board. The Chairman is responsible
for the leadership and effective working of the Board,
ensuring that all members of the Board, including
in particular the Non-Executive Directors, have an
opportunity to contribute effectively, and that there
is appropriate and timely communication with
shareholders.
The Board has delegated executive responsibility
for running the Group to the Joint Chief Executives
who are responsible for the strategic direction and
operational and financial performance of the Group.
The appointment of new Directors is a matter for the
Board as a whole, following recommendations made
by the Nomination Committee.
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STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprised Richard
Cotton (Chairman), James Hambro and Richard
Mully until 10 June 2014 and thereafter comprises of
Richard Cotton (Chairman), Melvyn Egglenton, James
Hambro, Richard Mully and Rebecca Worthington. It is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on all aspects of remuneration policy for Executive
Directors. The Committee’s report is set out on pages
102 - 114.

The Audit Committee comprised Humphrey Price
(Chairman), Richard Mully and Stephen Gee until
9 June 2014 and, from 10 June 2014 onwards,
comprises Humphrey Price (Chairman), Richard Mully,
Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca Worthington. Senior
representatives of the external auditor, Executive
Directors and senior management may be invited
to attend the meetings. The Committee’s report,
including details of its responsibilities, is set out on
pages 97 - 100.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website www.
hansteen.co.uk.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee comprises, James
Hambro (Chairman), Humphrey Price, Richard
Cotton, Richard Mully, and any one of the Joint Chief
Executives, Ian Watson and Morgan Jones, at any one
time. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and for
making recommendations in respect of any changes
and appointments. The Committee’s report, including
details of its responsibilities, is set out on page 101.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE
The schedule below sets out the number of principal
Board and Committee meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2014 together with individual
attendance by Board Members at those meetings.

Board

Audit
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

James Hambro

6

-

2

5

Ian Watson

6

-

1

-

Morgan Jones

6

-

1

-

Richard Lowes

6

-

-

-

Stephen Gee*

1

-

-

-

Richard Mully

6

3

2

4

Richard Cotton

6

-

2

5

Humphrey Price

6

3

2

-

Melvyn Egglenton**

2

2

-

1

Rebecca Worthington**

2

2

-

1

Number of meetings during the year

6

3

2

5

* Stephen Gee was eligible to attend three Board meetings and 1 Audit Committee meeting prior to his retirement.
** Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca Worthington were eligible to attend two Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings and
one Remuneration Committee meeting following their appointments.
In addition to Board meetings, the Board held a
number of dedicated strategy sessions during the
year to consider the development of the Company’s
strategy and business model. In between Board
meetings, the Board receives a monthly performance
pack containing detailed information on the entire
property portfolio.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Executive Directors regularly meet with
institutional shareholders and analysts. Private
investors are also encouraged to meet with the Board
and to participate in the Annual General Meeting. The
Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees are available to answer questions, where
appropriate, at the Annual General Meeting.
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Report of the Audit Committee
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
The Board has established an Audit Committee
(the “Committee”) in accordance with the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”). In the
period from 1 January 2014 to 9 June 2014 Humphrey
Price was Chairman of the Committee with Richard
Mully and Stephen Gee as the other members.
With effect from 10 June 2014, following Stephen
Gee’s retirement from the Board, the Committee
comprised Humphrey Price as Chairman with Richard
Mully, Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca Worthington
as the other members. All committee members
are considered by the Board to be independent.
Humphrey Price, Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca
Worthington all have recent and relevant financial
experience as required by the Code. No members
of the Committee have links with the Company’s
external auditor.
Senior representatives of the external auditors,
Executive Directors and senior management may be
invited to attend the meetings at the Committee’s
discretion. The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the Committee.
The Company believes the Committee contains the
right balance of knowledge, skill and experience to
support the business in achieving its strategy.
The Committee meets regularly during the year
aligned to the financial reporting timetable. During
2014 the Committee met three times for scheduled
meetings and details of members attendance at each
meeting is shown on page 96.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee is satisfied that it receives sufficient,
reliable and timely information from management
in order to allow it to fulfil its objectives and
responsibilities.

The Committee’s principal
responsibilities include:
• reviewing the content of the annual report and
financial statements and advising the Board on
whether, taken as a whole, it is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s performance, business model and
strategy;
• ensuring that management has systems and
procedures in place to ensure the integrity of
financial information;
• developing and implementing the policy for the
provision of non-audit services by the auditor;
• maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Group’s external auditor, reviewing the
effectiveness, objectivity and independence of
the external auditor, considering both the scope
of their work and the fees paid to them for audit
and non-audit services;
• considering all matters relating to the
recommendation for appointment, reappointment, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Group’s external auditor;
• monitoring the Group’s internal audit
requirements, internal financial controls and the
audit process;
• reviewing the interim and full year financial
statements prior to their submission to the Board,
applying the Group’s accounting policies and any
changes to financial reporting requirements; and
• undertaking a review of the Group’s risks on a
bi-annual basis.
The full terms of reference of the Committee,
reviewed in 2014, are available on the Company’s
website www.hansteen.co.uk.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Committee reviewed and considered
the following areas in respect of financial
reporting and the preparation of the
interim and annual financial statements:
• the appropriateness of accounting policies used;
• compliance with external and internal financial
reporting standards and policies;
• significant judgments made;
• statutory disclosures; and
• whether the Annual Report and Financial
Statements are fair, balanced and understandable.
No issues arose from this review.
In order to carry out this work, the Committee
considered the work and recommendations of the
Finance team led by the Finance Director, Richard
Lowes. In addition, the Committee received regular
reports from the external auditor setting out their
views of the accounting treatments and judgements
included in the financial statements. The reports from
the external auditor are based on a full audit of the
annual financial statements and a review of the interim
financial statements.

The significant issues considered by the
Committee in relation to the financial
statements were:
• Valuation and presentation of the Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) charge
• HBI Netherlands transaction
• Cash box accounting for the share issue
• Investment property valuations
• Going concern, debt maturity and covenant
compliance
• Recognition of overseas deferred tax assets

In addition to requesting that the
external auditor focus on these areas
and report to the Committee with their
findings the Committee also undertook
the following actions:
• The Committee reviewed and challenged
management’s assumptions supporting the
valuation and presentation of the LTIP charge
• The Committee reviewed the substance of the
HBI transaction and the presentation of the
resultant gain
• The Committee considered the structure of
the share placing and reviewed management’s
accounting
• Members of the Committee with relevant and
current expertise in property valuations met with
valuers of the Group property portfolio to discuss
the valuations
• Reviewed the underlying assumptions in the
going concern forecasts and the reasonableness
of the stress tests carried out in relation to those
forecasts
• Considered the supporting evidence for
recognition of overseas deferred tax assets.
No issues arose from the above.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee keeps under review the Company’s
need for an internal audit function. The majority of
the processing and accounting for the day-to-day
transactions of the Group is outsourced to third-party
suppliers. Management maintain a close relationship
with these suppliers and perform regular detailed
reviews of their work and report to the Committee
if any significant concerns are raised by these
reviews. The Committee regularly reviews the internal
controls to ensure that they are adequate for the
size and complexity of the business. On this basis
the Committee believes that the internal procedures
performed by management are performed to the
same degree as an internal audit function. The
Committee and the Board will continue to monitor this
position on an ongoing basis.
The Group has in place a formal whistle blowing
policy and a dedicated independent whistle blowing
hotline, as part of the arrangements set up and
monitored by the Committee, so that employees are
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able to report any matters of concern. The Board has
appointed Humphrey Price as the Board member
with responsibility for the Company’s whistle blowing
arrangements.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND THEIR INDEPENDENCE
The Group’s external auditor is Deloitte LLP
(“Deloitte”). In forming their opinion on the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor,
the Committee takes into account the safeguards
operating within Deloitte and they are asked to
provide a formal statement of their independence to
the Company annually. In addition, to safeguard that
independence, the Company ensures compliance with
its policy governing the provision of non-audit services
by the external auditor under which Deloitte may not
provide a service which places them in a position
where they may be required to audit their own work.
Specifically, Deloitte are precluded from providing
services relating to bookkeeping or other services
relating to accounting records or financial statements
of the Group, financial information system design
and implementation, appraisal or evaluation services,
actuarial services, any management functions,
investment banking services, legal services unrelated
to the audit, remuneration related services or
advocacy services.

To fulfil its responsibilities regarding
the external auditor, the Committee
reviewed:
• the scope of the audit as set out in the external
auditor’s engagement letter;
• the external auditor’s overall work plan;
• the external auditor’s fee proposal;
• a report from the external auditor describing their
arrangements to ensure objectivity and to identify,
report and manage any conflicts of interest; and,
• the extent of non-audit services provided by the
external auditor to ensure that they are not placed
in a position to audit their own work.
During 2014, services provided by Deloitte and their
associates to the Group, in addition to acting as
external auditor, included tax advice in respect of UK
and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax. The
Committee believes that it receives particular benefit
from certain non-audit services being provided by
the external auditor due to their wide and detailed
knowledge of the Company and so discretion is used,
subject to the controls set out above, in obtaining such
services from Deloitte.

Where non-audit services are provided, the fees are
based on the work undertaken and are not success
related. Consideration is given to the nature of and
remuneration received for other services provided
by Deloitte to the Group and confirmation is sought
from them that the fee payable for the annual audit is
adequate to enable them to perform their obligations
in accordance with the scope of the audit. The
Committee has fully evaluated all non-audit work
undertaken by Deloitte during the year against its
policy and remains comfortable that it is appropriate
and the fees justified.
Payments made by the Group for audit and non-audit
fees for the year are disclosed on page 45

EXTERNAL AUDIT EFFECTIVENESS
The Committee has adopted a formal framework in
its review of the effectiveness of the external audit
process which includes a review of the audit partner,
the audit team, the planning and scope of the audit,
including identification of risks, the execution of the
audit, the role of the Company and the management
team in an effective audit process, communications
by the auditor with the Committee, how the external
auditor supports the work of the Committee, how
the audit contributes insights and adds value, and the
independence and objectivity of the audit firm and the
quality of the formal, audit report to shareholders.
A comprehensive auditor assessment questionnaire
is completed annually by each member of the
Committee and the Finance Director. In addition,
feedback is obtained from members of the senior
management team, including the Joint Chief
Executives, and from the wider finance team. The
responses are collated and the resulting analysis
considered by the Committee and any concerns
are discussed with the external auditor. Every third
year the external audit partner will meet with the
Committee Chairman and Finance Director to formally
discuss the quality of the external audit process using
this evaluation framework and the outcome of those
discussions will feed into the audit process for the
subsequent three years.

The effectiveness of the management
team’s role in the external audit process
is assessed principally using the
following performance measures:
• the timely identification and resolution of areas of
accounting judgement;
• the quality and timeliness of papers analysing
those judgements;
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• the management team’s approach to the value of
independent audit and the booking of any audit
adjustments arising; and
• the timely provision of draft public documents for
review by the auditor and the Committee.
The Committee meets as considered necessary
with the external auditor without management being
present.
During the financial year under report, the Committee
gave particular focus to the effectiveness of the audit
of the Group’s HBI Netherlands transaction, the cash
box accounting for the share issue and accounting for
the LTIP.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR APPOINTMENT
Deloitte have been the Group’s external auditor
since 2006 when the Group prepared its first Annual
Report and Financial Statements. The audit partner
responsible for the Group’s audit matters is changed
every five years in accordance with the Ethical
Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. The
current audit partner is in his second year in office. The
Committee is aware of the emerging requirements for
listed companies regarding mandatory tendering every
ten years and has established a tendering policy based
on these requirements which will apply to the financial
year ending 31 December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the most significant risks faced by the
Group has been in place throughout the year and
up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts. That process, which accords with the
Turnbull guidance and the Board’s review of that
process, is set out below.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
the Group’s system of internal controls, including the
review of its effectiveness and suitable monitoring
procedures, in order to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Group as well as
the integrity of its accounting records and provide
reliable information for use within the business and
for publication. The Directors acknowledge that such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed, as part of the year-end
procedures, the effectiveness of the system of internal
controls for the period under review and up to the
date of this report, the key element of which is a risk
management process whereby key risks to achieving
our objectives and strategy as well as related controls
and monitoring procedures in respect of those risks
are identified in a risk register. The risk register is
reviewed bi-annually and updated where appropriate
and reports received from the executive on control
procedures, and any areas for improvement are
agreed for subsequent action. The Company’s principal
risks and uncertainties are reported in the Strategic
Report on pages 21 - 22 and include the judgements
and uncertainties used in determining the fair value of
investment property, fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates, taxation and the variability of rental income.

This process is supported by:
• Management structure
There is a clear organisational structure with welldefined lines of reporting and responsibility.
• Financial reporting
There are reporting disciplines including
performance monitoring and profit and cash
forecasting.
• Investment appraisal
The Group has a clearly defined framework
for capital and development expenditure and
subsequent on-going appraisals.
In addition, the key internal controls include regular
meetings of the Board and Committee whose overall
responsibilities are set out above.
During the course of its reviews of the system of
internal controls, the Board has not identified nor been
advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has
determined to be significant. Therefore a confirmation
in respect of necessary actions has not been
considered necessary.

Humphrey Price

Chairman of the Audit Committee
6 March 2015
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Report of the Nomination Committee
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
The Board has established a Nomination Committee
(the “Committee”), the majority of members of which
are independent Non-Executive Directors as required
by the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code. The
Committee comprises James Hambro (Chairman),
Humphrey Price, Richard Cotton, Richard Mully and
any one of the Joint Chief Executives, Ian Watson
and Morgan Jones, at any one time. The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee.
The Committee is required, in accordance with its
terms of reference, to meet at least once a year.
During 2014 the Committee met twice to recommend
the appointment of Melvyn Egglenton and Rebecca
Worthington to the Board and to approve the Terms of
Reference for the coming year.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, reviewed in 2014, are available on
the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.
The terms and conditions of the Non-Executive
Directors appointments are available for inspection
at the Company’s Annual General Meeting or at the
Company’s registered office.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
The role of the Committee is to keep under review
the composition of the Board, to plan for its
refreshment, with regard to balance and structure,
and to consider issues of succession.
The Committee is responsible for a number of
matters relating to the composition of the Board and
its committees. In particular it is responsible for:
• reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and making recommendations to the
Board with regard to any changes required;
• succession planning for Directors;
• identifying and nominating, for Board approval,
candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise;

The performance of the Committee was evaluated
as part of the internally managed Board evaluation
exercise undertaken in relation to the year ended 31
December 2014 and the Committee was found to be
operating effectively.

ACTIVITIES DURING 2014
The Committee’s focus in 2014 was on the
development of the Board’s succession plan,
in particular the appointment of two additional
Non-Executive Directors to join the Board. These
appointments fill the vacancy created by Stephen
Gee’s retirement in 2014 and the forthcoming
vacancy which will arise when Richard Mully retires
from the Board at the Annual General Meeting
in 2015. The Committee engaged the services of
an external executive search consultancy with no
prior relationship with the Company, to assist in
the recruitment process. From an initial list of 31
candidates put forward and meeting criteria agreed
by the Committee, a short list of four was drawn up
based on their level of relevant experience. The four
candidates on the shortlist were invited to meet me
and other members of the Board and as a result of
those discussions we welcomed Melvyn Egglenton
and Rebecca Worthington to the Board on 10 June
2014. Both Melvyn and Rebecca strengthen the
Hansteen board with their breadth of knowledge,
skills and experience and I look forward to working
with them both to deliver Hansteen’s strategy.
As a result of the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee both Melvyn Egglenton and
Rebecca Worthington were appointed to the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
In addition the Board accepted the Committee’s
recommendation to appoint Melvyn Egglenton
as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in
succession to Richard Cotton as Chairman of that
Committee.

• reviewing annually the time commitment
required of Non-Executive Directors; and
• making recommendations to the Board regarding
membership of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees in consultation with the Chairman of
each Committee.

James Hambro

Chairman
6 March 2015

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

102
Corporate Governance

Report of the Remuneration Committee
1. Annual Statement
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to introduce
the Report of the Remuneration Committee (the
“Committee”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The primary role of the Committee is to determine
and recommend to the Board the specific pay and
benefits packages for the Executive Directors, to
ensure that they are fairly, but responsibly, rewarded
for their individual contributions to the Group’s overall
performance. The Committee’s objective is to support
the business strategy of the Group, to promote the
Group’s long term success and to align remuneration
with shareholders’ returns. The Committee also
administers the Group’s share incentive plans. During
the year, the Committee carried out the following
activities:
• Review of the achievement of the 2013 annual
bonus scheme performance measures against
target;
• Review of base salaries for Executive Directors;
• Approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013;
• Review of the final outcome of Annual General
Meeting voting for the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 December 2013
and consideration of shareholder feedback;
• Approval of an award under the Performance
Share Plan (“PSP”) to the Executive Directors
and members of the Senior Management Team;
• Agreeing the design of, and targets for, the
annual bonus scheme for the year ending 31
December 2014; and
• Review of the Committee’s terms of reference
and performance during the year.

for the Executive Directors is merited (97.5% of the
maximum). In respect of PSP awards with a three
year performance period ending 31 December 2014,
under which 50% of each award is measured against
NAV targets and 50% against TSR targets, 100% of
the NAV part is expected to vest while 0% of the
TSR part is expected to vest. Base salary increases
for the Executive Directors were at a level below the
aggregate increase for employees across the Group.

POLICY FOR 2015
No changes to the structure of remuneration for
Executive and Non-Executive Directors were made
in the year ended 31 December 2014 and none are
proposed for the year ending 31 December 2015.
The following report has been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008,
as amended, and meets the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code.
The Report is presented in two main parts – the
Remuneration Policy Report and the Annual Report
on Remuneration. The Remuneration Policy was
approved by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 9 June 2014 and it is intended
that the policy will apply for three years from that
date. The Remuneration Committee anticipates
reviewing the Remuneration Policy in late 2016/
early 2017 and submitting it to the shareholders for
approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held in
2017. An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 8 June 2015
to approve the Annual Report on Remuneration and
this Annual Statement, both of which are subject to
an advisory vote.

PERFORMANCE AND REWARD
The Group’s performance has been excellent, as
reflected in a 22% increase in Normalised Income
Profit per share; a 41% increase in Normalised Total
Profit per share and a 12% increase in EPRA NAV. In
this context, the Committee is satisfied that the level
of payment under the annual bonus scheme

Richard Cotton

6 March 2015
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2. Remuneration Policy Report
The following table summarises the key elements of
the Group’s Remuneration Policy for Directors which
was approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM.
Details of the full Remuneration Policy can be found in
the 2013 Annual Report available from the Company’s
website at www.hansteen.co.uk/investors.

SUMMARY POLICY TABLE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FIXED PAY
Element
Purpose and link to strategy

BASE SALARY
• To attract, retain and motivate high-calibre individuals.
• To provide competitive non-variable remuneration relative to the external
market.
• To recognise and reward performance, skills and experience.

Operation

Normally reviewed in January each year having regard to market practice, to
Group and individual performance, and to scope of responsibility.

Maximum opportunity

There is no maximum salary or maximum salary increase. Salaries are
determined with regard to competitive market practice and also to Group
and individual performance and scope of responsibility. Salary increases
will typically be in line with increases for other Group employees but the
Committee has discretion to increase above this level to take account
of individual circumstances such as increase in scope and responsibility,
individual development and performance in role, and alignment to market level.

Performance measures

None, although overall individual performance is considered when deciding
salary levels.

Element

PENSION

Purpose and link to strategy

To help recruit and retain high-calibre Executive Directors reflecting an
individual’s skills and experience.

Operation

Contributions to pension funds.

Maximum opportunity

Employer contribution of maximum of 16% of base salary.

Performance measures

None.

Element

BENEFITS

Purpose and link to strategy

To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package appropriate to the
role and location of Executive Directors.

Operation

Benefits comprise the provision of a company car allowance, private fuel,
private medical insurance for the Executive Director and immediate family,
life assurance and permanent health insurance. Executive Directors are also
provided with the technology required to enable them to carry out their duties
effectively and efficiently.
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The benefits package may be adjusted by the Committee from time to time to
reflect an individual’s particular circumstances and to align to market level.
In addition to the above, other benefits such as relocation allowances may be
offered if considered appropriate and reasonable by the Committee.
Maximum opportunity

Full cost of provision.

Performance measures

None.

VARIABLE PAY
Element

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE RELATED BONUS SCHEME

Purpose and link to strategy

To reward excellent financial performance and achievement of strategic,
financial and operational objectives linked to investor expectations at the
beginning of the year.

Operation

Measures and targets are reviewed and set annually by the Committee at
the beginning of the financial year and the levels of award are determined by
the Committee after the year-end based on the performance against targets.
Bonus awards are paid in cash, are non-pensionable and are subject to a claw
back in relation to fraud or gross misrepresentation.

Maximum opportunity

Up to 100% of base salary but limited to 75% of base salary for each of the
Joint Chief Executives in view of their participation in the Founder Long Term
Incentive Plan.

Performance measures

A combination of financial and non-financial targets, such as occupancy and
cost efficiency targets, corporate targets and a discretionary element to
reward overall performance. The exact measures, weightings and targets are
determined by the Committee each year taking into account the Group’s key
strategic priorities and the budget for the year.

Element

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (“PSP”)

Purpose and link to strategy

To incentivise and reward outstanding performance and ensure alignment with
shareholders’ interests.

Operation

Awards of share options on an annual basis. Awards are normally exercisable
over a two-year period normally commencing no earlier than three years from
date of grant, subject to continued employment and performance conditions.

Maximum opportunity

Annual awards subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary
but limited to 75% of base salary for each of the Joint Chief Executives in view
of their participation in the Founder Long Term Incentive Plan.

Performance measures

Targets are set by the Committee in accordance with the strategic objectives
of the Group at the time the awards are granted and measured over a three
year performance period.

Element

FOUNDER LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (“FOUNDER LTIP”)

Purpose and link to strategy

Legacy arrangement forming part of the Founder Directors’ arrangements
established at IPO (November 2005) to incentivise the existing Joint Chief
Executives and to recognise and reward the delivery of exceptional returns to
shareholders. This arrangement cannot be offered to any other Directors.

Operation

Contractual rights operating over three year performance periods to award
shares where the NAV per share growth exceeds the Target NAV per share.
The current performance period is 2013 to 2015.
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Maximum opportunity

For each Joint Chief Executive, an award of shares with a value equal to 12.5%
of the NAV per share growth in excess of a Target NAV per share multiplied by
the number of shares in issue at the end of the performance period.

Performance measures

In the relevant three year performance period, the NAV per share must have
compound growth in excess of 10% per annum. The NAV per share growth
and the Target NAV are measured after including dividends and other returns
to shareholders. The performance measure was chosen to reward the Founder
Directors if the Group’s return to shareholders is significant in absolute terms.

Element

SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT

Purpose and link to strategy

To demonstrate the commitment of the Executive Directors to the Company
and to ensure alignment of their personal interests with those of the Company
and the shareholders.

Operation

The Executive Directors are required to build and then maintain a shareholding
in the Company.

Maximum Opportunity

Within three years of their appointment, the Executive Directors are required
to build and then maintain a shareholding in the Company equal in value to
their pre-tax base salary.

Performance measures

None.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Element

FEES

Purpose and link to strategy

To attract and retain high- calibre individuals.

Operation

Fees are reviewed periodically. Non-Executive Directors do not participate
in the annual bonus or long term incentive schemes and receive no other
benefits.
Fees are paid in cash.

Maximum opportunity

There is no individual maximum fee or maximum fee increase. Fees are set at
a level to reflect time commitment and responsibilities of the relevant role and
by reference to surveys of fees paid to non-executive directors of companies
with comparable market capitalisation.
The Chairman is paid an all-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities
determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee.
Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee plus additional fees for chairing
Board Committees or for acting as Senior Independent Director. These are
determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee.
Overall fees must remain within the limit in the Articles of Association of
£750,000 in aggregate.

Performance measures

None.
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3. Annual Report on Remuneration
INTRODUCTION

FIXED PAY/BENEFITS

This Annual Report on Remuneration provides details
on how the Group’s remuneration policy was applied
in the year ended 31 December 2014 and how it will
be applied in 2015. It will be subject to an advisory
vote by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Committee approved increases to base annual
salary of 1.2% for Ian Watson and Morgan Jones and
2.9% for Richard Lowes, with effect from 1 January
2015.
2014
Salary
£000

2015
Salary
£000

Ian Watson

415

420

Morgan Jones

415

420

Richard Lowes

263

270

A. IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY FOR 2015
In line with the Remuneration Policy, the key elements
of the 2015 remuneration package for the Executive
Directors are:
• Fixed pay/benefits – base annual salary and
benefits, pension contributions and insurance
cover as stated in the Summary Policy Table in
the Remuneration Policy Report section of this
report.
• Variable annual pay – cash payments under the
annual performance related bonus scheme.

Executive Directors

No changes will be made to pension and benefit
provision.
VARIABLE ANNUAL PAY

• Variable long term pay – share based long-term
incentives under the PSP and the Founder LTIP
with performance criteria.

The Board has set new targets for the Executive
Directors for the annual bonus in line with the Group’s
strategic, financial and operational objectives. The
maximum potential bonus will continue to be limited
to 75% of base salary and the changes to the annual
bonus targets are within the scope of the approved
Remuneration Policy. The bonus criteria for 2015
include four elements:

TARGET

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

% OF POTENTIAL AWARD

Financial Targets
(up to 35% of award)

• Normalised Income Profit before tax per share
from 6.9p to 7.5p (pro-rata) to achieve full award.

Up to 15% of award.

• Normalised Total Profit before tax per share from
6.9p to 9.2p (pro-rata) to achieve full award.

Up to 20% of award.

• The occupancy target range is a net improvement
of 60,000 square metres to 120,000 square
metres (pro-rata).

Up to 12.5% of award.

• The cost efficiency target range is an
administrative expenses/rent ratio of 15.0% to
16.0% (pro-rata).

Up to 12.5% of award.

• Submit detailed business plans to the Board for all
the main regions (UK, Germany and Benelux) and
implement approved strategy

Up to 20% of award.

Occupancy/Cost
Efficiency Targets
(up to 25% of award)

Corporate Target
(up to 20% of award)

• Optimise liability strategy in support of the agreed
approach to the regional business plans
• Review of foreign exchange hedging policy
Discretionary Element
(up to 20% of award)

• Based on overall performance.

Up to 20% of award.
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN
For 2015, each Executive Director will be awarded
nil-cost share options under the PSP with a value at
grant of 75% of his base salary. The award will vest
based on two separate performance conditions: 50%
will vest by reference to the Group’s TSR ranking and
50% by reference to the Group’s EPRA Net Asset
Value ranking, in each case relative to a comparator
group over a three-year performance period. Awards
that meet the performance conditions are exercisable
in three equal annual instalments following the end of
the performance period.
The comparator group is determined by the
Committee and comprises a peer group of companies
in the property sector. When granting awards, the
Committee reserves the right to vary the constituents
of the comparator group or take such other actions as
it considers reasonable in the event that any member
of the comparator group ceases to exist, or its shares

cease to be listed in the Official List of the London
Stock Exchange or other recognised stock exchange,
or it is so changed as to make it, in the opinion of
the Committee, unsuitable as a member of the
comparator group. The percentage of the award that
vests is subject to the following schedule:

TSR/NAV Growth Ranking Vesting
Below Median

Nil

Median

25%

Between Median and
Upper quartile

On a straight line basis
between 25% and
100% in proportion to
the Company’s ranking
between Median and
Upper Quartile.

AUDITED INFORMATION

B. SINGLE FIGURE TABLE

Salary/fees
£000

Taxable
benefits
£000

Performance
related
bonus
£000

Share
schemes
£000

Pension
£000

2014
Total
£000

Ian Watson

415

54

303

203

66

1,041

Morgan Jones

415

51

303

203

66

1,038

Richard Lowes

263

38

192

132

42

667

James Hambro

92

-

-

-

-

92

Richard Mully

51

-

-

-

-

51

Richard Cotton

50

-

-

-

-

50

Melvyn Egglenton

27

-

-

-

-

27

Stephen Gee

23

-

-

-

-

23

Humphrey Price

50

-

-

-

-

50

Rebecca Worthington

27

-

-

-

-

27

1,413

143

798

538

174

3,066

2014
Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Total

HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

108
Corporate Governance

Salary/fees
£000

Taxable
benefits
£000

Performance
related
bonus
£000

Share
schemes
£000

Pension
£000

2013
Total
£000

Ian Watson

395

51

289

254

63

1,052

Morgan Jones

395

49

289

254

63

1,050

Richard Lowes

250

34

182

165

40

671

James Hambro

92

-

-

-

-

92

Stephen Gee

49

-

-

-

-

49

Richard Mully

51

-

-

-

-

51

Richard Cotton

50

-

-

-

-

50

Humphrey Price

46

-

-

-

-

46

1,328

134

760

673

166

3,061

2013
Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Total

SALARY AND FEES
Salaries and fees comprise base salary for Executive
Directors and fees for Non-Executive Directors. The
fees of Stephen Gee were paid to Wallace Clifton
Limited during 2014 and 2013. Stephen Gee retired
from the Board on 10 June 2014. Melvyn Egglenton
and Rebecca Worthington were appointed to the
Board on 10 June 2014.
TAXABLE BENEFITS
Taxable benefits comprise the monetary or deemed
monetary value of the car allowance, private fuel
and private medical insurance for the Executive
Director and immediate family, and life assurance and
permanent health insurance provided by the Group.
PERFORMANCE RELATED BONUS
The maximum potential bonus for the year ended 31
December 2014 for each of the Executive Directors
was 75% of base salary (2013: 75%).

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

109
Corporate Governance

The 2014 bonus awards were measured against the following targets:

% AWARD
GRANTED

TARGET

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

ACTUAL ACHIEVED

Financial Targets
(up to 35% of
award)

• Normalised Income Profit EPS
to be at or above 6.2p (15%).

• Normalised Income Profit EPS
7.1p.

15% awarded.

• Normalised Total Profit EPS
from 6.2p to 7.7p (pro-rata) to
achieve full award (20)%.

• Normalised Total Profit EPS
9.7p.

20% awarded.

Occupancy/Cost
Efficiency Targets
(up to 25% of
award)

• The target range was a net
improvement of 70,000 square
metres to 140,000 square
metres (pro-rata) (12.5%).

• Improvement of 196,649
square metres (pro-rata).

12.5%
awarded.

• Improvement in administrative
expenses / rent ratio to 16% 17% (pro-rata) (12.5%).

• Administrative expenses / rent
ratio of 15.3%.

12.5%
awarded.

• These related to securing
a reduction in third party
letting fees, implementing the
refinancing of the existing bank
loans secured on the German
property portfolio, completing
a significant transaction and
setting and executing corporate
strategy with the objective to
grow recurring earnings over
the medium term.

• Reduction in third party letting
fees from 4% of rents from
new lettings and renewals to
2%.

20.0%
awarded.

• Based on overall performance

• Based on overall performance.

Corporate Target
(up to 20% of
award)

Discretionary
Element (up to
20% of award)

• The bank loans secured on the
German property portfolio were
all refinanced.
• New equity was raised. The
mature investment in HPUT
I was realised and additional
investment was made in the
AIF and HPUT II portfolios. The
HBI Netherlands Portfolio was
acquired, along with the Pisces
portfolio in Germany. These
transactions are expected to
contribute to earnings growth
over the medium term.
17.5% awarded.

In total, the Committee awarded bonuses to each
Executive Director of 97.5% of his maximum potential
bonus.

average share price of £1.04. To the extent that the
share awards vest, they will be exercisable in three
equal instalments from June 2015 to June 2017.

SHARE SCHEMES - PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

In the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2013, it was estimated that the
Group achieved 100% of the TSR ranking and 25%
of the NAV growth ranking at the time of publishing
the report. The actual rankings were 88% of the TSR
ranking and 25% of the NAV growth ranking. The
share price used to calculate the value of the awards
in 2013 was £1.08. The share price on the day that the
awards vested was £1.07. The comparative amounts
disclosed in the 2013 table above have been restated
to reflect these changes to the estimated value.

The value included under share schemes is an
estimate of the value of the PSP awards that will vest
subject to TSR and NAV performance targets for the
three year period that ended on 31 December 2014.
Based on an assessment of performance targets as
at 27 February 2015, it is estimated that the Group will
achieve 0% of the TSR ranking and 100% of the NAV
growth ranking (i.e. a total vesting of 50%). The value
of the share awards expected to vest is based on the
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C. SHARE SCHEME INTERESTS

PENSIONS
The pension value included in the Single Figure Table
represents the cash contributions paid or payable to
the self-administered pension funds of the Executive
Directors.

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN
The Executive Directors’ total interests under the PSP
are summarised below:

OTHER PAYMENTS
No payments were made to past Directors and no
payments were made for loss of office during the year.

Ian Watson

Morgan Jones

Richard Lowes

Award
date

Share price
for award
(p)

Face
value

Performance
period

Vesting
period

Number of share options
Awarded

Lapsed

Vested

July 2012

72.34

£281,250

01/12 – 12/13

06/14 – 06/16

388,789

170,095

72,898

July 2012

72.34

£281,250

01/12 – 12/14

06/15 – 06/17

388,789

-

-

March 2013

85.22

£296,250

01/13 – 12/15

03/16 – 03/18

347,630

-

-

April 2014

110.20

£311,250

01/14 – 12/16

04/17 – 04/19

282,441

-

-

July 2012

72.34

£281,250

01/12 – 12/13

06/14 – 06/16

388,789

170,095

72,898

July 2012

72.34

£281,250

01/12 – 12/14

06/15 – 06/17

388,789

-

-

March 2013

85.22

£296,250

01/13 – 12/15

03/16 – 03/18

347,630

-

-

April 2014

110.20

£311,250

01/14 – 12/16

04/17 – 04/19

282,441

-

-

July 2012

72.34

£182,813

01/12 – 12/13

06/14 – 06/16

252,713

110,562

47,384

July 2012

72.34

£182,813

01/12 – 12/14

06/15 – 06/17

252,713

-

-

March 2013

85.22

£187,500

01/13 – 12/15

03/16 – 03/18

220,019

-

-

April 2014

110.20

£196,875

01/14 – 12/16

04/17 – 04/19

178,652

-

-

The share price used to calculate the number
of shares under each award was determined by
reference to the average mid-market price of an
ordinary share of the Company over five consecutive
dealing days immediately preceding the award date.
The Directors did not exercise any of the vested
options during the year.
The three-year performance period for the second
award ended on 31 December 2014. It is estimated
that 50% of those share options will vest and are
exercisable in three equal instalments from June
2015 to June 2017, subject to continued employment
of the Director. The number of share options that are
exercisable will include a number with an aggregate
market value, at the date of exercise, equal to the
value of the dividends that would have accrued
on those share options being exercised from the
beginning of the performance period.
As noted on page 107, the PSP awards vest based on
a TSR and NAV growth ranking and 25% of the PSP
awards vest if the minimum performance threshold is
met. The performance targets are the same for all the
awards issued under the PSP to date.

FOUNDER LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
As part of the founder arrangements established at
IPO in 2005, the Joint Chief Executives are entitled to
a share award dependent on Company performance.
Any amount payable under the Founder LTIP is to
be satisfied in full by the award of ordinary shares of
the Company. The number of shares awarded under
the Founder LTIP will depend on the Company’s net
asset value growth per share (including dividends and
other returns to shareholders) exceeding a compound
growth rate of 10% per annum (the “Target NAV”)
over a defined three-year period. For the purposes of
this scheme, net asset value is taken to be the diluted
net asset value adjusted in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the European Public Real Estate
Organisation (“EPRA NAV”). The Committee believes
that EPRA NAV is the most appropriate methodology
for calculating NAV but it has the discretion to
use such other NAV basis as the Committee shall
determine as appropriate if EPRA NAV is no longer
reasonably regarded as the appropriate market
benchmark for the Company. To the extent that EPRA
NAV per ordinary share (including dividends and other
returns to shareholders) exceeds the Target NAV per
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share, 12.5% of such excess multiplied by the number
of ordinary shares in issue will be payable to each of
the Joint Chief Executives as an award. This award
scheme repeats automatically to reward performance
over consecutive three-year periods. The current threeyear period commenced on 1 January 2013 and will
run to 31 December 2015.
The price per share to be used when determining the
number of shares which the Joint Chief Executives
would be entitled to pursuant to the Founder LTIP
will be the average mid-market quotation for such
shares on the Main Market for the first 20 dealing days
immediately following the end of the relevant threeyear period.

D. DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND SHARE
INTERESTS
SHAREHOLDING GUIDELINES
The Company introduced a policy requiring Executive
Directors to maintain a minimum holding of shares in
the Company at the 2013 Annual General Meeting.
Within three years of their appointment, Executive
Directors are expected to build, and then maintain, a
holding of shares in the Company equal to one year’s
base salary.
The current shareholdings of the Executive Directors
compared to their respective base salaries are: Ian
Watson - 1090%, Morgan Jones - 1090% and Richard
Lowes - 268%.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
Shares

Shares subject to PSP awards

Ordinary
shares

Unvested with
performance
measures

Vested
but not
exercisable

Vested
and
exercisable

Exercised
during the
year

Ian Watson

4,523,809

1,018,860

145,796

72,898

-

Morgan Jones

4,523,809

1,018,860

145,796

72,898

-

Richard Lowes

704,107

651,384

94,767

47,384

-

James Hambro

375,000

-

-

-

-

Richard Mully

475,800

-

-

-

-

Richard Cotton

300,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

200,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Melvyn Egglenton
Humphrey Price
Rebecca Worthington

None of the ordinary shares held by Directors have
performance measures. Ian Watson and Morgan
Jones each purchased 23,809 shares during the year.
PSP awards issued are detailed above.
As described on page 110, the Joint Chief Executives
participate in the Founder LTIP. Provided that the

performance conditions are met, the number of
shares that will be issued at the end of the current
three-year period (31 December 2015) depends on the
Group’s net asset value growth per share. As a result,
the number of shares that will be issuable is not yet
known.
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This table shows the single figure remuneration and percentage of bonus and incentive vesting for the Joint Chief
Executives for the last six years.

Single figure
£000

Annual bonus payout
against maximum
opportunity
%

Long-term
incentive vesting rates
against maximum
opportunity
%

1,041

97.5

50.0%

Year

Joint Chief Executive

2014

Ian Watson
Morgan Jones

1,038

97.5

50.0%

2013

Ian Watson

1,052

97.5

56.25%

Morgan Jones

1,050

97.5

56.25%

Ian Watson

793

82.9

-

Morgan Jones

789

82.9

-

2011

Ian Watson

671

95.0

-

Morgan Jones

667

95.0

-

2010

Ian Watson

604

87.7

-

Morgan Jones

600

87.7

-

Ian Watson

499

89.8

-

Morgan Jones

497

89.8

-

2012

2009

F. PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION
This table shows the percentage change in remuneration of the Joint Chief Executives for the last financial year
compared to all employees that were employed during both the financial year and the preceding financial year.

% change 2013 to 2014

Salary/fees
%

Taxable benefits
%

Performance
Related bonus
%

Joint Chief Executives

5.0%

5.9%

5.0%

All employees employed over two-year period

6.0%

5.9%

28.8%

G. RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
This chart below shows the relative importance of spend on pay compared to the Group’s key financial measures
and dividends paid to shareholders in the year.

£60M
£50M
£40M
£30M

2014
2013

£20M
£10M
£0M
Normalised Income Profit

Dividends

Overall expenditure on pay

Normalised Income Profit has been chosen as a metric for this comparison as the Directors believe that it
represents underlying earnings of the Group and is a key performance indicator.
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H. THE COMMITTEE AND ITS ADVISERS
During the year, the Committee was made up of
Richard Cotton (as Chairman), Richard Mully and,
from 10 June 2014 onwards, Melvyn Egglenton and
Rebecca Worthington, all of whom are considered
independent by the Board, and James Hambro,
Chairman of the Board, who was considered to be
independent on his appointment as Chairman. The
Committee meets regularly, and no less than twice
a year, and no member of the Committee has any
personal financial interest, other than as a shareholder,
in the matters decided. Committee members have no
day-to-day involvement in the running of the Company.
Details of attendance at meetings can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report.
The performance of the Committee was assessed
during the year as part of the internal evaluation of
the Board and its Committees and was found to be
operating effectively. The full terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, updated following a review
undertaken in December 2014, are available on the
Company’s website at www.hansteen.co.uk.

The Committee seeks external advice to assist it
where appropriate. The Committee consulted New
Bridge Street (“NBS”), which is part of AON plc,
during the year and approved fees to them of £5,000,
excluding VAT, for independent remuneration advice.
NBS provided no other service to the Company
during the year and the Committee is satisfied that
the advice provided by NBS is both independent and
objective. NBS is a member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and abides by its Code of Conduct
which requires it to provide objective and impartial
advice. The Committee seeks internal support from
the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary
where necessary, and they may all attend Committee
meetings by invitation, but are not present for
any discussions that relate directly to their own
remuneration.

I. VOTING AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
At the Annual General Meeting held on 9 June 2014,
votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of
the Directors’ remuneration were as follows:

Votes for

% For

Votes against

% against

Total
votes cast

Votes withheld
(abstentions)

Approval of Annual Report
on Remuneration

513,827,098

98.07%

10,126,078

1.93%

523,953,176

13,173,495

Approval of
Remuneration policy

499,072,167

92.92%

38,009,265

7.08%

537,081,432

45,239

Resolution text
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Financial Calendar
Ex-Dividend Date
23 April 2015

Record Date
24 April 2015

Posting Dividend
20 May 2015

Dividend Payable
21 May 2015

Annual General Meeting
8 June 2015
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